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Portions of the Registrant's Definitive Br&tatement for the 2009 Annual Meeting of Stod#ars are incorporated herein by reference
to the extent indicated into Part IIl of this Foli®-K.

Forward-Looking Statements

This Form 10-K contains forward-looking statemenithin the meaning of the federal securities lawd ¢ghe Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995, which are based amagement's current expectations, estimates an@gons. These statements may
found throughout this Form -K, particularly under the headings "Business" ddMhnagement's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operation,” among othEmward-looking statements typically are identifieglthe use of terms such as "may,"
"will," "should," "expect," "anticipate," "believe;'estimate," "intend" and similar words, althougbme forward-looking statements are
expressed differently. You should consider stat&sitbat contain these words carefully because tlesgribe our expectations, plans,
strategies and goals and our beliefs concerningriubusiness conditions, our future results of afiens, our future financial positions, and
our business outlook or state other "forward-logKimformation.

The factors listed below under the heading "Ris&té&is" and in other sections of this Form 10-K pd&vexamples of risks,
uncertainties and events that could cause our dcasults to differ materially from the expectatsoexpressed in our forward-looking
statements. These risks, uncertainties and evésdsreclude, but are not limited to, the followingacertainties regarding our ability to open
stores in new and existing markets and operateetewes on a profitable basis; conditions affegtionsumer spending and the impact,
depth and duration of the current economic recesdiclement weather; changes in our merchandise tithing and type of sales events,
promotional activities and other advertising; inaed or new competition; loss or departure of onemore members of our seni
management, or experienced buying and managemestdrmp®l; an increase in the cost or a disruptiorthie flow of our products; seasonal
and quarterly fluctuations; fluctuations in our cparable store results; our ability to operate irghly competitive markets and to compete
effectively; our ability to operate information $g1s and implement new technologies effectivelyability to generate strong cash flows
from our operations; our ability to anticipate anelspond in a timely manner to changing consumeratheism and preferences; and our abil
to generate strong holiday season sales.

The forward-looking statements made in this ForrKli@late only to events as of the date on whiehsttatements are made. Except as
may be required by law, we undertake no obligat@aopdate any forward-looking statements to reflaents or circumstances after the date
on which the statements were made or to reflecotisarrence of unanticipated events.

The terms "Tuesday Morning,
and its subsidiaries.

the Company,” "w&$," and "our" as used in this Form 10-K refer toe§day Morning Corporation




PART |
ltem 1. Business
Overview

We are a leading closeout retailer of ufgshame furnishings, housewares, gifts and relagads in the United States. We opened our
first store in 1974 and operated 857 stores intdfes as of June 30, 2009. Our stores are generaly seven days a week and focus on
periodic "sales events," that occur in each morteet January and July. We are normally closedifoto the first two weeks of January and
July as we conduct physical inventories at allwf stores. We purchase first quality, brand namechaandise at closeout pricing and, in turn,
sell it at prices significantly below those genraharged by department stores and specialty atalog retailers. We do not sell seconds,
irregulars, refurbished or factory rejects.

We believe that our well recognized, fogality brand name merchandise and value-basemgti@ve enabled us to establish and
maintain strong customer loyalty. Our customersy ate predominantly women from middle to upper-inechouseholds, are brand savvy,
value-conscious customers seeking quality prodatatisscount pricing. While we offer our customessisistent merchandise categories, each
sales event features limited quantities of newamkaling products within these categories, crgatitftreasure hunt" atmosphere in our
stores.

We believe that our customers are attraitexir stores not by location, but by our advartjsand direct or electronic mail programs t
emphasize the limited quantities of first qualtlyand name merchandise which we offer at attragtiaes. This has allowed us to open our
stores in secondary locations of major suburbarketsuisuch as strip malls, near our middle and upmame customers. We are able to
obtain favorable lease terms because of our fllityilim site selection and our no-frills format, igh allow us to use a wide variety of space
configurations. Additionally, we offer selectednits for sale at our retail website at www.tuesdayrimgoffer.com.

In the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009egerded sales of $801.7 million and operating ime®f $2.4 million. We paid dividends in
calendar years 2005, 2006 and 2007 ranging fro@53fer share to $0.80 per share. On February B, 200 Board of Directors voted to
terminate the declaration of an annual cash divdd@he Board of Directors indicated that it willnsider the full range of alternatives with
regard to the use of any excess cash flow in thedu

On April 30, 2007, our Board of Directoggpaoved a change in our fiscal year end from Deegrhh to June 30, effective June 30,
2007. Accordingly, our financial statements incldlle six-month period ended June 30, 2007, andrepilesent the twelve-month periods
ending June 30, thereafter. As a result of thisighathis Form 10-K includes financial informatimn the six-month transition period ended
June 30, 2007 and 2006 and for the twelve-montiogeended June 30, 2009, and 2008, December 86, 2005, and 2004. The twelve-
month period ended June 30, 2009 is hereinafterrexf to as fiscal 2009.

Key Operating Strengths
Our success is based on the following dpeyatrengths:

. Unique Event-Based Format. We distinguish ourselves from other retailerswatunique "event-based" selling strategy,
creating the excitement of multiple "grand openiraysd "closeout sales" each year. Merchandisedgable in limited
guantities and specific items are generally noker@phed during a sales event, however, storesnmuento receive new
merchandise throughout a sales event. We beliatdhh limited quantities of specific items intdpgiustomers' sense of
urgency to buy our merchandise. Accordingly, weehaigtorically generated a majority of an everdlesin the first five days
of the event. We intend to continue to adhere




to this strategy, and continue shipments to ouestof new and different merchandise during ther Istages of sales events in
order to encourage new and repeat customer visits.

. Strong Sourcing Capabilities and Purchasing Flexiblity. We have developed strong sourcing capabilitiasdiow us to
gain favorable access to first quality, brand nameechandise at attractive prices. In many casegelieve we are the retailer
of choice to liquidate inventory due to our abilibtymake purchasing decisions quickly and to rapsell large quantities of
merchandise without disrupting the manufactureaslitional distribution channels or compromisingittbrand image. Our
flexible purchasing strategy allows us to pursue peoducts and merchandise categories from veraopportunities arise.
We employ an experienced buying team with an aeecd@ver 25 years of retail experience. Our bugeis our reputation as
a preferred, reliable closeout retailer have erthbfeto establish long-term relationships withvedie group of top-of-the-line
vendors.

. Loyal Customer Base of Brand Savvy and Vali-Conscious Consumers We have a loyal customer base consisting
primarily of women ranging in age from 35 to 54rfraniddle and upper-income households with a meaual family
income of approximately $60,000. In addition to imakpurchase decisions based on brand names addgprquality, our
customers are also value-conscious. We believealue-based pricing, which enables our customersatize significant
savings of up to 50% to 80% over competing depantratre retail prices, has resulted in both straugfomer loyalty and
satisfaction. We have developed and currently raaird proprietary mailing and email list consistofgver 9.0 million
customers. These customers have visited our shimicksequested mailings to alert them of upcomitgssavents including the
brand name merchandise and prices to be offerax,tprthe advertising of a sales event to the ggnmublic.

. Attractive Store-level Economics We have attractive store-level economics dueutdaw store operating expenses and the
low initial investment required to open new stof@ar destination-oriented retail format allows a®pen stores in a wide
range of locations, resulting in lower lease ra@spared to those of other retailers. In additmour low real estate costs, we
maintain low operating and depreciation costs duautr no-frills, self-service format. Because we lgv-cost store fixtures
and have low pre-opening costs, our new storesneguow initial investment and have historicajlgnerated a solid return on
investment in their first full year.

. Disciplined Inventory and Supply Chain Management We have developed disciplined inventory contral aupply chain
management procedures. Our purchasing flexibihiy strong relationships with vendors allow us tordinate the timing of
purchases and receipt of merchandise closely witrsales events. Our merchandise and distributistems allow us to
quickly and efficiently process and ship merchaadiiom our distribution center to our stores. Hinadur point-of-sale
systems allow us to effectively manage our inventevels and sales performance. While as of Jun@@09, we operated 857
stores, our shipping and sorting capacity at osiriiution center will accommodate to approximateB00 to 1,250 stores.

Growth Strategy

Our growth strategy is to continue to buildour position as a leading closeout retailarpsfcale home furnishings, housewares, gifts
and related items in the United States by:

. Enhancing Our Store Base During the planning process for fiscal 2009 afdi® we evaluated our current store base and
plans to enhance our store locations. As a restiti®evaluation, we have and intend to contiruprimarily pursue expansit
and relocation opportunities in our existing stoase; close some stores by allowing leases toeefqitunprofitable stores
where alternative locations are not available aeptable lease rates; as well as open fewer new
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stores. For both new stores and relocations, weegstiating for upgraded sites. With the expansigportunities, we will be
working with high-producing stores and increasimng $elling square footage. We believe this willdfégrus and better position
us for the long term while still maintaining a la@st per square foot in rent expense. To thatfendhe fiscal year ending
June 30, 2010 we plan to add slightly fewer sttiiaa in prior years and expand or relocate exisioges as we locate
profitable opportunities to do so. We believe therthe potential for approximately 1,200 to 1,250res in the United States
and do not anticipate any difficulties in identifgi suitable additional store locations in areas wilr target customer
demographics.

. Enhancing Our Sales Productivity. We intend to increase the number of customes#etions by refining our merchandise
mix and through other operating initiatives. Foaewle, we have continued to make shifts in our pcobdhix to focus on
functional, utilitarian items rather than purelycdeative assortments. In addition, we have beey selective in our seasonal
merchandise purchases and remain focused on hayghigh value items. We are able to increasemerchandise offerings
throughout each sales event and on a day-in, dalasis by delivering fresh product to most of stares between 40 to 47
times per year. We believe this attracts new custepencourages repeat visits by existing custoar@sncreases our average
transaction value during the later stages of ealds®vent. We have increased staffing at somerdfigh volume stores in an
effort to improve our customer service levels aridedour sales volumes while decreasing staffingt@tes where customer
traffic does not require current staffing levels.

. Extending Our Customer Reach. Historically, we have used direct mailings, taegkeemails, and newspaper and print
advertising to attract customers to our storesb@leeve that the use of direct mailing and emaittalremains our most
effective marketing strategies. We also operate'@tlireasures"(r) program that provides our custemath an email of our
newest weekly arrivals, special offers and our iyntailer, all in the convenience of their home®ffices.

. Improving Systems. We plan to upgrade and update our current sysésmequired in the ongoing course of businesss@he
improvements may include updates to our merchamgiasind inventory tracking systems, point-of-salévwsare, and Internet
sales site aww.tuesdaymorningoffer.com

Industry Trends

As a closeout retailer of first qualityabd name merchandise, we benefit from attractieeactteristics in the closeout industry. Close
merchandise is generally available to closeoutlestaat low prices for a variety of reasons, imlthg the inability of a manufacturer to sell
merchandise through regular channels, the disagemice of merchandise due to a style or color chahgecancellation of orders placed by
other retailers and the termination of businesa byanufacturer or wholesaler. Occasionally, theemait retailer may be able to purchase
closeout merchandise because a manufacturer hassepav materials or production capacity. Typicallgseout retailers have lower
merchandise costs, capital expenditures and opgratists, allowing them to sell merchandise atggriower than other retailers.

In addition, we benefit from several treimshe retailing industry. The increase in "justtime" inventory management technigues and
the rise in retailer consolidation have both resiiih a shift of inventory risk from retailers t@amufacturers. In response to an increasingly
competitive market, manufacturers are introducieg products and new packaging more frequently. @liewe that these trends have hel
make the closeout retailer an integral part of nfacturers' overall distribution strategies. As sutg we believe manufacturers are
increasingly looking for larger, more sophisticatdoseout retailers such as ourselves that carhpaeclarger and more varied merchandise
and can




control the distribution and advertising of spexffroducts in order to minimize disruption to tharmafacturers' traditional distribution
channels.

Products

We sell upscale home furnishings, housesyayiéts and related items. We do not sell secoingsyulars, refurbished or factory rejects.
Our merchandise primarily consists of lamps, rk@shen accessories, small electronics, gourmeséwares, linens, luggage, bedroom and
bathroom accessories, toys, stationary and silktglas well as crystal, collectibles and silvewisgy pieces. We specialize in weieognized
first quality, brand name merchandise, which hatioted Calphalon cookware, Krups, KitchenAid ands@art appliances, Sferra linens,
Donna Karan bath towels, Samsonite luggage, WaladeGorham flatware, Lenox and Dansk tabletop gMiarcrystal, Steinbach and
Hummel collectibles, Madame Alexander dolls, Rdyallton and Wedgwood china and giftware and mahgnst

We differ from discount retailers in thag¢ wo not stock continuing lines of merchandise.a@Bse we offer a continuity of merchandise
categories with ever-changing individual produdenhgs, we provide our customers a higher proportif new merchandise items than
general merchandisers. We are continually lookingdd new complementary merchandise categoriesjipegal to our customers.

Purchasing

Since our inception, we have not experidrangy significant difficulty in obtaining first glity, brand name closeout merchandise in
adequate volumes and at attractive prices. We usig af domestic and international vendors. As stdytrends such as "just-in-time"
inventory management, retailer consolidation andenfi@quent order cancellations by retailers placee inventory risk on manufacturers,
we believe we will continue to see an increas@é@rntumber of vendors looking for effective wayseduce excess inventory. In addition, as
we continue to increase our number of stores, mizriproductive retail space and increase distriloutiapacity, we believe our purchasing
capacity will continue to increase and enable wsctuire larger quantities of closeout merchanfiliza individual vendors and
manufacturers. Improvements in our distributioncesses allow us to stock merchandise in our stooee quickly, which increases our
purchasing flexibility. As a result of these treradf®l initiatives, we believe we will be able togadvantage of more and often larger, buying
opportunities as well as offer an enhanced seledig@roducts to our customers. During fiscal 200%, top ten vendors accounted for
approximately 9.9% of total purchases, with no kingndor accounting for more than 1.4%.

Pricing

Our pricing policy is to sell all merchasdisignificantly below the retail prices generalyarged by department and specialty stores.
Prices are determined centrally and are uniforallatf our stores. Once a price is determined fpadicular item, labels displaying three-
tiered pricing are affixed to the product. A tydipace tag displays a competitor's "regular” priaeompetitor's "sale" price and our closeout
price. Our management and buyers verify retailgzrisy reviewing prices published in advertisemants catalogues and manufacturers'
suggested retail price lists and by visiting deparit or specialty stores selling similar merchamd®ur management information systems
provide daily sales and inventory information, whanables us to mark down unsold merchandise immedytand periodic basis as required
by sales volumes and incoming purchases and thefédstively manage inventory levels.
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Advertising

We plan and implement an advertising progfar each sales event. Prior to each sales ewenitiate a direct mailing or email to
customers on our mailing list through our eTreas®remail program, which consists of customers wdnetpreviously visited our stores and
requested mailings. These direct mailings alertacusrs to the opening of a sales event and thehaedise and prices we offer. We also
communicate with customers by advertising in lo@kspapers in each of our markets.

Stores and Store Operations

Site Selection.  During the planning process for fiscal 2009] 2010, we evaluated our current store base amd pdeenhance our
store locations. As a result of this evaluation,hage and intend to continue to primarily pursupagsion and relocation opportunities in our
existing store base; close some stores by alloleiages to expire for unprofitable stores wheraradtitve locations are not available at
acceptable lease rates; as well as open fewer toe@gssFor both new stores and relocations, waegetiating for upgraded sites. With the
expansion opportunities, we will be working witlghiproducing stores and increasing the sellingregiomtage. We believe this will benefit
us and better position us for the long term whilé rmaintaining a low cost per square foot in rempense. To that end, for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2010 we plan to add slightly festeres than in prior years and expand or relocdgtieg stores as we locate profitable
opportunities to do so. We expect our new stordgeteimilar in appearance and operation to outiegistores and do not anticipate any
difficulties in identifying suitable additional s®locations in areas with our target customer dgaghics. As we continue our expansion and
relocation strategy, we expect to incur a minimatéase in the cost of real estate for those loesti

We believe that our customers are attraitexir stores by our advertising, direct mail @anghil programs that emphasize the limited
guantities of first quality, brand name merchandaitéch we offer at attractive prices, rather thgridcation. This has allowed us to open our
stores in secondary locations of major suburbarketsrsuch as strip malls, near our middle and upE®me customers. We are able to
obtain favorable lease terms because of our flkityilim site selection and our no-frills format, igh allow us to effectively use a wide variety
of space configurations. As a result of this opypigtic approach to site selection, we believereal estate costs are lower than those of «
retailers.

StoreLeases. Except for one store adjacent to our distritruttenter, we lease our store locations undercamicelable operating lea:
that include optional renewal periods. Some ofleases also provide for contingent rent based spae sales exceeding stipulated amounts.

Our store leases typically include "kickuses," which allow us, at our option, to exit fdeese 24 to 36 months after entering into the
lease if sales at the store do not reach a stgaitount in the lease. These kick clauses, whabioed with our inexpensive and portable
store fixtures, provide us with flexibility in opigry new stores and relocating existing stores lmméhg us to quickly and cost-effectively
vacate a site that does not meet our sales exjpastafs a result, we generally do not operatetiona with store-level operating losses.

StoreLayout.  Our opportunistic site selection and "no-fftillgpproach to presenting merchandise allow us écauwide variety of
space configurations. The size of our stores gépesmges from 6,000 to 15,000 square feet andamesl approximately 9,300 square feet as
of June 30, 2009. We have designed our stores fioriational, with little emphasis placed upon fids and leasehold improvements. We
display all merchandise at each store by type &dah racks or counters, and we maintain minimowemtory in stockrooms.
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Store Operations.  We operate our stores during "sales eventat“dbcur once each month except January and J@yaré/generally
closed for up to the first two weeks of January dmlg as we conduct physical inventories at allgiores. We have maintained the frequency
of shipments of new merchandise during a salestewdnich has resulted in improved efficiency of otendise receiving and restocking
activities at our stores. We have also reducedtpae associates' labor hours in the stores to mlosely align them with current customer
demand. We believe that on-going training is aaaitcomponent to the success of our store manageBach store manager receives
ongoing training beginning with new manager tragnirpon being hired or promoted as well as periattiendance at one or more training
sessions held in Dallas, Texas. In addition, stoa@agers are supported not only by the corporéitepbut also by regional and zone field
managers.

Store Management.  Each store has a manager who is responsibledaniting, training and supervising store persdramd assuring
that the store is managed in accordance with dabkshed guidelines and procedures. Store managerfsill-time employees. Our store
managers are supported by regional field manageamehzone level support. Our store managers apemsible for reviewing store inventc
and ensuring their store is continually stockedsfles event and non-sales event periods. Therstomager is assisted by ftilthe employee
who may serve as assistant managers and part-tirplgees who serve as cashiers and help with medidea stocking efforts.

Members of our management visit selecterkstduring sales event and non-sales event panadsiew inventory levels and
presentation, personnel performance, expense ¢engerurity and adherence to our procedures.ditiad, regional managers periodically
meet with senior management to review store pdiai@l to discuss purchasing, merchandising andtiing strategies for future sales
events.

StoreLocations.  As of June 30, 2009, we operated 857 stord$ istates. Specific store locations can be accébsauagh our website
atwww.tuesdaymorning.com

Distribution

An important aspect of our success invotwasability to process, sort and distribute inweptquickly and efficiently. Our buying,
distribution center and planning and allocationatépents work closely together to ensure that wuentory flow is efficient and effective.
The majority of our merchandise is received, ingpgocounted, ticketed and designated for individt@res at our central distribution center
in the Dallas, Texas metropolitan area. As a geémel® we carry similar products in each of owres, but the amount of inventory each <
is allocated varies depending upon size, locatimhsales projections for that store. Consistert witr sales event strategy, we ship most of
our merchandise to our stores within a few weekissadrrival at our distribution center. We genbrdb not replenish specific merchandise
during a sales event; however, new and differemthandise is shipped to stores throughout a sakast.e

We make inventory deliveries to our stdyvetveen 40 to 47 times per year, which allows wsgnificantly reduce the amount of
inventory stored at our distribution center andmt&in more consistent in-store inventory levelssTumber of shipments also allows our
stores to process shipments more effectively amekgsheir shelves with new merchandise during sadesits. We also use a bar-code locator
system to track inventory from the time it is re®el until it is shipped to our stores. This systlows us to locate, price, sort and ship
merchandise efficiently from our central distrilmuticenter.

Management Information Systems

We have invested significant resourcesomguters, bar code scanners and radio frequenoynials, software programming and related
equipment, technology and training, and we intendontinue updating these systems as necessarglst/dave a company-wide local area
network




computer system, which includes purchase orderggsing, imports, transportation, distribution, paifisale and financial systems, and
enables us to efficiently control and process ouemtory.

At the store level, we have computer-basegikters that capture daily sales data at the BXe&l. Sales information, inventory
information, open to buy, and other operationahdatistributed daily to designated levels of nggamaent and to the individuals or groups
who have responsibility for specific aspects oftsiness.

Competition

We believe the principal factors by which eompete are price and product offering. We belisg compete effectively by pricing the
merchandise we sell below department and speatite prices and by offering a broad assortmehtgif-end, first quality, brand name
merchandise. We currently compete against a divgnmep of retailers, including department and distatores, specialty, e-commerce and
catalog retailers and mass merchants, which saebng other products, home furnishings, housewardselated products. We also compete
in particular markets with a substantial numbereddilers that specialize in one or more typesawhé furnishing products that we sell. Some
of these competitors have substantially greatemitial resources that may, among other thingseass their ability to purchase inventory at
lower costs or to initiate and sustain aggressneegompetition.

We are distinguishable from our competiiarseveral respects. Unlike our competitors, wigidmarily offer continuing lines of
merchandise, we offer changing lines of merchandiégending on availability at value driven pridest retailers in the closeout retailing
industry are either general merchandisers or foougpparel, while our current operations focus grity on upscale home furnishings,
housewares, gifts and related items. In additiampelieve most closeout retailers focus on lowerraiddle-income consumers, while we
generally cater to middle and upper-income custsnténally, our business model has been and cagitube focused on ten major sales
events which are promoted and advertised to ouomess through direct mailings, emails and, frametito time, television advertising. We
believe that our sales events create a sense efey@nd excitement on the part of our customesause they know that the availability of
merchandise during a sales event is limited.

Seasonality

Our business is highly seasonal, with aifiant portion of our net sales and operatingime generated during the quarter ended
December 31, which includes the holiday shoppiregse. Net sales in the quarters ended DecembdrZ108, 2007, and 2006 accounted
approximately 34%, 35%, and 35%, respectively,wsfannual net sales for such fiscal years. Opeyédticome for the quarter ended
December 31 of 2008, 2007, and 2006 accountedofmoaimately 845.2%, 142%, and 64%, respectivelpus annual operating income for
such fiscal years.

Employees

As of July 15, 2009, we employed approxihat,900 persons on a full-time basis and appratéfy 8,700 individuals on a part-time
basis. Our employees are not represented by aopsiniVe have not experienced any work stoppagecdabor disagreements and we
believe that our employee relations are strong.

Trademarks and Tradenames

The tradename "Tuesday Morning" is matedadur business. We have registered the name tiayddorning” as a service mark with
the United States Patent and Trademark office. e h




also registered other trademarks including "Clodimge®" and "eTreasures®" and maintain an intesadts website at
www.tuesdaymorningoffer.com

Corporate Information

Tuesday Morning Corporation is a Delawargoration incorporated in 1991. Our principal axee® offices are located at 6250 LBJ
Freeway, Dallas, Texas 75240, and our telephonéauia (972) 387-3562.

We maintain a websitewatvw.tuesdaymorning.conCopies of our Annual Report on Form 10-K, qudytezports on Form 10-Q,
current reports on Form 8-K and any amendmentadb seports filed with, or furnished to, the Setiesiand Exchange Commission (the
"SEC") are available free of charge on our intemebsite under the Investor Relations Section.

Any materials filed or furnished by us witie SEC may be read and copies made at the SHKlis Reference Room at 100 F Street,
NE, Washington, D.C. 20549. Information on the agien of the Public Reference Room may be obtaimecalling the SEC at-800-SEC-
0330. In addition, the SEC maintains a websitew.sec.goy which contains reports, proxy and informationesteents and other information
which we file or furnish electronically with the SE

ltem 1A. Risk Factors

Our business is subject to significantgiskou should carefully consider the risks and uaiaties described below and the other
information in this Form 10-K, including our conslalted financial statements and the notes to thtzdements. The risks and uncertainties
described below are not the only ones facing uslithwhal risks and uncertainties that we do nosprely know about or that we currently
believe are immaterial may also affect our busimggEsations. If any of the events described belowwadly occur, our business, financial
condition or results of operations could be advgrafected in a material way.

Risks Related to Our Business
We face a number of risks in opening new stores anglocating or expanding existing stores.

As part of our growth strategy, we williparily pursue expansion and relocation opportusitieour existing store base. For both new
stores and relocations, we are negotiating for aghepl sites. With the expansion opportunities, veenaorking with high producing stores and
increasing the selling square footage. To that Endhe fiscal year ending June 30, 2010 we pteadd slightly fewer stores than in prior
years and expand or relocate existing stores deaate profitable opportunities to do so. Howeweg,cannot assure that we will be able
achieve our relocation or expansion goals or tretwil be able to operate our new stores profitablyrther, we cannot assure that any new,
relocated or expanded store will achieve similarapng results to those of our existing storethat new, relocated or expanded stores
opened in markets in which we operate will not haveaterial adverse effect on the revenues andtaiity of our existing stores. The
success of our planned expansion will be dependeont numerous factors, many of which are beyondtontrol, including the following:
the ability of our personnel to adequately analyzé identify suitable markets and individual steites within those markets; the competition
for suitable store sites; our ability to negotitgteorable lease terms with landlords; our abil@ybtain governmental and other third-party
consents, permits and licenses needed to operattaras; the availability of employees to staffvrstores and our ability to hire, train,
motivate and retain store personnel; the availshili adequate management and financial resouocesoperly manage a large volume of
stores; our ability to adapt our distribution ardes operational and management systems to a aftangtwork of stores; and our ability to
attract customers and generate sales sufficienpéoate new stores profitably.
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We opened stores in new markets durindiseal years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, ansixtmmonth period ended June 30, 2007.
We intend to enter into additional new marketsisodl 2010 and beyond. These markets may havediffeompetitive conditions, consumer
trends and discretionary spending patterns thamxisting markets, which may cause our new staréisaése markets to be less successful
than stores in our existing markets.

Poor economic conditions affect consumer spendingnd may significantly harm our business.

The success of our business depends tmidisant extent upon the level of consumer spegudfnumber of factors beyond our control
affect the level of consumer spending on merchanthat we offer, including, among other things:g@aheconomic and industry conditions;
the housing market; crude oil prices, that affextaiine and heating oil prices; food prices andt #&fect on consumer discretionary spend
the level of consumer debt; interest rates; taasrand policies; war, terrorism and other hosgitiand consumer confidence in future
economic conditions.

The merchandise we sell generally consitiscretionary items. Reduced consumer confidemcespending cut backs may result in
reduced demand for our discretionary items and foi@e us to take significant inventory markdownedRced demand also may require
increased selling and promotional expenses. Adwgeromic conditions and any related decreaseriaswrner demand for discretionary
items could have a material adverse effect on asiniess, results of operations and financial candit

Our business is intensely competitive and increasest new competition could have a material adverseffect on us.

The retail home furnishings and housewargsstry is intensely competitive. As a closeouiiter of home furnishings and housewares,
we currently compete against a diverse group ailegs, including department and discount stongsciglty and e-commerce retailers and
mass merchants, which sell, among other productagtfurnishing and housewares products similarcdtath identical to those we sell. We
also compete in particular markets with a subsahntimber of retailers that specialize in one orertgpes of home furnishing and housew
products that we sell. Many of these competitoretmibstantially greater financial resources thay allow them to initiate and sustain
aggressive price competition. A number of differeoinpetitive factors could have a material adveffect on our business, results of
operations and financial condition, including: iesased operational efficiencies of competitors; ogtitige pricing strategies, including deep
discount pricing by a broad range of retailers migiperiods of poor consumer confidence or econamsiability; continued and prolonged
promotional activity by competitors; liquidationlea by a number of our competitors who have filedvdl file for bankruptcy; expansion by
existing competitors; entry by new competitors imtarkets in which we currently operate; and adoptip existing competitors of innovative
store formats or retail sales methods.

We cannot assure that we will be able tttiooe to compete successfully with our existinghew competitors, or that prolonged periods
of deep discount pricing by our competitors wilt meaterially harm our business. We compete forausts, associates, locations,
merchandise, services and other important aspéotsr dousiness with many other local, regionaljoratl and international retailers. We also
face competition from alternative retail distritartichannels such as catalogues and internet webSit@nges in the merchandising, pricing
and promotional activities of those competitors] anthe retail industry generally, may adversdfga our performance.
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We must continuously attract buying opportunities br closeout merchandise and anticipate consumer deand as closeou
merchandise becomes available.

By its nature, specific closeout merchamdisms are available from manufacturers or vengererally on a non-recurring basis. As a
result, we do not have long-term contracts with\emdors for supply, pricing or access to produmts,make individual purchase decisions,
which are often for large quantities. With the emtrdisruption in the credit markets, certain of manufacturers and suppliers have ceased
operations or have otherwise become unable toraamBupplying closeout merchandise on terms addeptia us. We further cannot assure
that manufacturers or vendors will continue to melkseout merchandise available to us in quantiegptable to us or that our buyers will
continue to identify and take advantage of appedprbuying opportunities. In addition, if we misggdconsumer demand for products, we
may significantly overstock unpopular products dedorced to take significant markdowns and migsoofunities to sell more popular
products. Any inability to acquire suitable merctii@e in the future or to accurately anticipate comsr demand for such merchandise would
have an adverse effect on our business, resuiperhitions and financial condition.

The loss of, or disruption in the operations of, oucentralized distribution center would have a mateial adverse effect on our business
and operations.

With minor exceptions, all inventory is gpéd directly from suppliers to our centralizedritisition center in the Dallas, Texas
metropolitan area, where the inventory is then @ssed, sorted and shipped to our stores. We dépdargie part on the orderly operation of
this receiving and distribution process, which defse in turn, on adherence to shipping scheduldsefactive management of the
distribution center. We cannot assure that we laaieipated all of the changing demands which cpaeading operations will impose on our
receiving and distribution system or that eventgbe our control, such as disruptions in operatiduns to fire or other catastrophic events,
labor disagreements or shipping problems, willnesult in delays in the delivery of merchandiseuo stores. We also cannot assure that our
insurance will be sufficient, or that insuranceqaeds will be timely paid to us, in the event aigtribution center is shut down for any
reason.

Our freight costs and thus our cost of goods sold@impacted by changes in fuel prices.

Our freight cost is impacted by changefu@l prices through surcharges. Fuel prices anchsuges affect freight cost both on inbound
freight from vendors to our distribution center andbound freight from our distribution center tar gtores. In addition, the U.S. government
requires drivers of over-the-road trucks to takeade rest periods which reduce the available arhofitime they can drive during a 24-hour
period. High fuel prices or surcharges, as welitaagent driver regulations, may increase freggts and thereby increase our cost of goods
sold.

The loss or departure of one or more members of owsenior management could have a material adversefe€t on our business.

Our future performance will depend in lapget upon the efforts and abilities of our sem@nagement, particularly Kathleen Mason,
our President and Chief Executive Officer, andather key employees, including our buyers. The éfsservice of these persons could have
a material adverse effect on our business anddyirospects. We do not maintain key person lifargnsce for Ms. Mason or our other senior
management. We only have employment agreementdWgitiMason and Mr. Michael Marchetti, our Chief @geng Officer, and have no
such agreements with any of our other membersrobseanagement.
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If we are not able to generate strong cash flowsdm our operations, we will not be able to supportapital expansion, operations anc
debt repayment.

Our business is dependent upon our opesijenerating strong cash flows to support ourtab@xpansion requirements, our general
operating activities and our debt repayments. @albility to continue to generate sufficient casiwi to support these activities or the lack of
availability of financing in adequate amounts andappropriate terms could adversely affect ounfaia performance and our earnings per
share growth.

An increase in the cost or a disruption in the flowof our imported products may significantly decreas our sales and profits.

Merchandise manufactured and imported foverseas is the majority of our total product pasgs acquired both domestically and
internationally. A disruption in the shipping oframported merchandise or an increase in the ddstose products may significantly
decrease our sales and profits. In addition, ifartgd merchandise becomes more expensive or uablgithe transition to alternative
sources may not occur in time to meet our demapiglucts from alternative sources may also bessilequality and more expensive than
those we currently import. Risks associated withreliance on imported products include disruptionthe shipping and importation or
increases in the costs of imported products becafufsetors such as: raw material shortages; wiwgges; strikes and political unrest;
problems with oceanic shipping, including shippaamtainer shortages; increased customs inspeatfangort shipments or other factors
causing delays in shipments; economic crises;natenal disputes and wars; loss of "most favoraibn" trading status by the United States
in relation to a particular foreign country; impdrities; import quotas and other trade sanctioms;igcreases in shipping rates.

The products we buy abroad are sometiniesgin foreign currencies and, therefore, we #iected by fluctuating exchange rates. In
the past, we have entered into foreign currencha&xge contracts with major financial institutionshedge these fluctuations. We might not
be able to successfully protect ourselves in theréuagainst currency rate fluctuations, and auarfcial performance could suffer as a result.
You should read "Management's Discussion and Aisabfs-inancial Condition and Results of Operatiant "Quantitative and Qualitative
Disclosures About Market Risk" for more informatiabout our foreign currency exchange rate exposutiehedging activities.

Our success depends upon our marketing, advertisingnd promotional efforts. If we are unable to implenent them successfully, or if
our competitors are more effective than we are, ourevenue may be adversely affected.

We use marketing and promotional prograorattract customers to our stores and to encoyragsases by our customers. We use
various media for our promotional efforts, inclugliprint, television, database marketing, email dinelct marketing. If we fail to choose the
appropriate medium for our efforts, or fail to iraplent and execute new marketing opportunitiescompetitors may be able to attract some
of our customers and cause them to decrease peschesur stores and increase purchases elsewtteish could negatively impact our
revenues. Changes in the amount and degree of fimorabintensity or merchandising strategy by ocaimpetitors could cause us to have
difficulties in retaining existing customers antratting new customers.
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If we do not attract and retain quality sales, distibution center and other associates in large numbs, as well as, experienced buyin
and management personnel, our performance could kadversely affected.

Our performance is dependent on recruitigyeloping, training and retaining quality salfistribution center and other associates in
large numbers, as well as, experienced buying aarthgement personnel. Many of our associates anatiy level or part-time positions with
historically high rates of turnover. Our ability neeet our labor needs while controlling costs Igjextt to external factors such as
unemployment levels, prevailing wage rates, mininwage legislation and changing demographics. Iretlent of increasing wage rates, if
we do not increase our wages competitively, outarnsr service could suffer because of a declinungity of our workforce, or our earnings
would decrease if we increase our wage rates. @sathgit adversely impact our ability to attract eetdin quality associates and manage!
personnel could adversely affect our performance.

Our results of operations are subject to seasonahd quarterly fluctuations, which could have a mateial adverse effect on our
operating results or the market price of our commorstock.

Our business is highly seasonal, with aifiant portion of our net sales and operatingme generated during the quarter ended
December 31, which includes the holiday shoppiregsr. Net sales in the quarters ended DecembdrZ108, 2007, an@006 accounted fi
approximately 34%, 35%, and 35%, respectively,wsfannual net sales for such years. Operating iedmmthe quarters ended December 31
of 2008, 2007, and 2006 accounted for approximaiéb.2%, 142%, and 64%, respectively, of our anopatating income for such years.
For more information about our seasonality, please "Management's Discussion and Analysis of FiehCondition and Results of
Operation—Quarterly Results and Seasonality." Beeausignificant percentage of our net sales artatipg income are generated in the
quarter ending December 31, we have limited akititgompensate for shortfalls in December quagkassor earnings by changes in our
operations or strategies in other quarters. A Sgmt shortfall in results for the quarter endidgcember 31 of any year could have a mat
adverse effect on our annual results of operatomson the market price of our common stock. Owartguly results of operations may also
fluctuate significantly based on such factors las:timing of new store openings; the amount ofsaéts contributed by new and existing
stores; the success of our store relocation progifaertiming of certain holidays and sales evetrttgnges in our merchandise mix; general
economic, industry and weather conditions thatcaffensumer spending; and actions of competitacduding promotional activity.

A failure to grow or maintain our comparable storesales may adversely affect our results of operatian

Our comparable store sales results haetutited in the past, and we believe such fluctnatimay continue given the current economic
climate and uncertainty of consumer spending. @urparable store sales decreased 12.5% and 7.6¥%eféiscal years ended June 30, 2009
and 2008, respectively, decreased 2.5% in thensixth period ended June 30, 2007, and decreas#diii.the calendar year ended Decen
31, 2006. The unpredictability of our comparabtgetsales may cause our revenue and results ddtapes to vary from quarter to quarter,
and an unanticipated decline in revenues or operaticome may cause our stock price to fluctuageiicantly. A failure to grow or mainta
our comparable store sales results could have erimlzidverse effect on our results of operations.

A number of factors have historically atfst, and will continue to affect, our comparablmstsales results, including: competition;
general regional and national economic conditiomdement weather; consumer trends, such as lesalspy due the impact of high
unemployment rates; changes in our merchandiseouixability to distribute merchandise efficienttyour stores; timing and type
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of sales events, promotional activities or othereatising; new merchandise introductions; and duilitg to execute our business strategy
effectively.

Risks Related to Our Common Stock

Our certificate of incorporation, and bylaws and Ddaware law contain provisions that could make it mee difficult for a third party to
acquire us without the consent of our board of diretors.

Provisions in our certificate of incorpaoat and bylaws will have the effect of delayingppeventing a change of control or changes in
our management. These provisions include the fatigwthe ability of our Board of Directors to isssieares of our common stock and
preferred stock without stockholder approval; aurezment that stockholder meetings may only beeddbly the President and Chief Execu
Officer, the Chairman of the Board or at the writtequest of a majority of the directors then ificefand not the stockholders; a prohibition
of cumulative voting in the election of directorghich would otherwise allow less than a majoritystifickholders to elect director candidates;
the ability of our Board of Directors to make, albe repeal our bylaws without further stockholdeproval; and the requirement for advance
notice for nominations for directors to our boafdimectors and for proposing matters that candiecaupon by stockholders at stockholder
meetings.

In addition, we are subject the provisiohSection 203 of the Delaware General Corpordltianw. These provisions may prohibit large
stockholders, in particular those owning 15% or enmirour outstanding voting stock, from merginggcombining with us.

Our largest stockholder has significant influence wer us, which may affect the rights of other stockblders.

At August 26, 2009, Madison Dearborn Cdgitartners Il, L.P. and its affiliates (collectiyelMadison Dearborn") beneficially owned
approximately 26% of the outstanding shares ofcounmon stock, and thus, has a significant influema election of our directors, appro
of mergers, sales of assets and other mattersintdrests of Madison Dearborn may conflict with thierests of other holders of our comn
stock.

Sales of our common stock by our largest stockholdeould depress our stock price.

If our largest stockholder sells substadmtraounts of our common stock, the market pricewsfcommon stock could fall. Such sales
might make it more difficult for us to sell equity equity-related securities in the future. As afgiist 26, 2009, Madison Dearborn
beneficially owned approximately 26% of the outsliag shares of our common stock. Pursuant to ragjish rights we granted to Madison
Dearborn, we have filed, and the SEC has decldfedtiwe, a registration statement that would ea@dadison Dearborn, from time to time,
to sell some or all of its shares of common statkhe public market or otherwise.

Because we do not presently have plans to pay digidds on our common stock, stockholders must look Isty to appreciation of our
common stock to realize a gain on their investment.

On February 1, 2008, our Board of Directarted to terminate the declaration of an annusthchividend. The Board of Directors
indicated that it will consider the full range dfemnatives with regard to the use of any excesh faw in the future. Our future dividend
policy is within the discretion of our Board of Bators and will depend upon various factors, iniclgaur business, financial condition,
results of operations, capital requirements andstment opportunities. Accordingly, stockholdersstdaok solely to appreciation of our
common stock to realize a gain on their investmEhis appreciation may not occur.
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The price of our common stock has fluctuated substaially over the past several years and may contireito fluctuate substantially in
the future.

From December 31, 2006 to June 30, 20@9tréding price of our common stock has ranged fadow of $0.51 per share to a high of
$17.87 per share. We expect our stock to contindxe tsubject to fluctuations as a result of a ¢@é factors, including factors beyond our
control, which have been included throughout thismidal Report on Form 10-K. We may fail to meetekpectations of our stockholders or
of securities analysts at some time in the futanel, our stock price could decline as a result.

ltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
Item 2. Properties

Stores.  We lease all of our stores from unaffiliateddtparties normally through non-cancelable lease®pt one located adjacent to
our distribution facility. At June 30, 2009, thamraining terms of the majority of our store leasmse from six months to five years and only
5.9% of our store leases have remaining termsgréan five years. The average initial term ofcaeslease is approximately five years with
options available for renewal. We intend to corgino lease all of our new stores from unaffiliatieidd parties. Leases may contain renewal
clauses which are often executed and may contaiti@ual terms regarding percentage of rent paymedur store leases typically include
"kick clauses," which allow us, at our option, totéhe lease 24 to 36 months after entering theddf sales at the store do not reach a
stipulated amount in the lease.

Didtribution Facilities and Corporate Headquarters.  We own approximately 1,318,000 square feetisifidution facilities and a
79,000 square foot building which houses our catooffice in the Dallas, Texas metropolitan area.

We lease an additional fulfillment centéapproximately 59,000 square feet for which thesieexpires in March of 2014. Additionally,
we have leases on three parcels of land of appeaigi;n444,000 square feet, two of which are faitdrastorage and the third parcel is for a
30,000 square foot building. The leases for traterage expire in February 2014 and December a8@i3he lease for the third parcel and
building expires February 2011. We believe our entrdistribution facilities are adequate to meetreguirements for the next several years.
We will, however, need to acquire or lease addéiavarehouse space in approximately three to fearsgto accommodate our distribution
requirements as our store base grows.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

During 2001 and 2002, we were named adendant in three complaints filed in the Superiou@ of California in and for the County
of Los Angeles. The plaintiffs sought to certifgtatewide class made up of some of our currenf@mnaer employees, which they claim are
owed compensation for overtime wages, penaltiesrardest. The plaintiffs also sought attorney&ssfand costs. In October 2003, we ent
into a settlement agreement with a sub-class aktipéaintiffs consisting of managers-in-trainingl ananagement trainees which was paid in
November 2005 with no material impact to our finahstatements. A store manager class was certifiedever, in August 2008, our moti
for de-certification of the class of store manageas granted, thereby dismissing their class acti@im. The plaintiffs have appealed this
ruling and oral argument has been scheduled. liiaddsome plaintiffs may choose to pursue thkdimss individually. We do not expect a
of these complaints to have a material impact arfinancial statements.
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A similar lawsuit, which also alleges claitoncerning meal and rest periods, was filed en@e County, California in 2004, by
managers, managers-in-training and assistant mes)agel an amended complaint was filed in July 200December 2008, the four
plaintiffs abandoned their class action claim aadehelected to pursue their individual claims ali asclaims under California's Private
Attorney General Act with respect to such allegatior his matter is presently set for trial in Segter 2009. A companion lawsuit alleging
the same claims was filed on December 26, 2008balbof approximately thirty-four additional inddwal plaintiffs. This lawsuit includes a
claim under California's Private Attorney Generat. AThe companion lawsuit is still in the initidhges of litigation. We do not expect any of
these complaints to have a material impact on ioantial statements.

In December 2008, a class action lawsug fikad by hourly, non-exempt employees in the Sigpe&ourt of California in and for the
County of Los Angeles, alleging claims covering h@a rest period violations. This case has besyest pending the outcome of another
case. We do not expect this complaint to have &mahimpact on our financial statements.

We intend to vigorously defend all pendawgions. We do not believe these or any other lpgaieedings pending or threatened against
us would have a material adverse effect on ounfifed condition or results of operations.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Secity Holders

None.
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PART Il
ltem 5. Market For Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases &quity Securities

Our common stock is listed on the NASDAQeSeGIobal Market under the symbol "TUES." Thdduling table sets forth for the
periods indicated the high and low sales priceshare as reported on the NASDAQ Select Global ktark

High Low

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009
First quartel $ 530 $2.9¢
Second quarte $ 5.3C $0.9C
Third quartel $ 2.6t $0.51
Fourth quarte $ 4.0¢ $1.1¢

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008
First quartel $13.52 $8.5¢
Second quarte $ 9.5¢ $4.41
Third quartel $ 6.11 $4.04
Fourth quarte $ 5.9C $3.9C

On August 26, 2009, the last reported pat for our common stock on the NASDAQ SelectialdVarket was $4.66 per share. As of
August 26, 2009, there were approximately 169 hsldérecord of our common stock.

Dividend Policy

In prior fiscal years, we have declared paidl the following annual cash dividends:

2009 2008 2007
Payment dat None None March 30, 200
Dividend per common sha $0.8(
Total dividend $33.1 millior

On February 1, 2008, our Board of Directayted to terminate our annual cash dividend. Thar8 of Directors indicated that it will
consider the full range of alternatives with regtrdthe use of any excess cash flow in the future.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Corpensation Plans

The information contained in Item 12 ofstiiorm 10-K is incorporated herein by reference.
Repurchases of Common Equity

We do not have a stock repurchase progoairadr common stock.
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Stock Price Performance

The following graph illustrates a companisid the cumulative total stockholder return (cheunmgstock price plus reinvested dividends)
for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2009, and 26@8ix months ended June 30, 2007, and the yiet@s ended December 31, 2006 through
2003, of (1) our common stock, (2) the S&P 500 ind8) the S&P 500 retailing index and (4) a forrgesup of our peer companies
consisting of Big Lots, Inc.; TIX Companies Incgllar Tree Stores Inc.; Family Dollar Stores, Inijliams-Sonoma Inc.; Bed Bath &
Beyond Inc.; Ross Stores Inc.; the Bombay CompadyCGost Plus, Inc. Bombay Company is not includedte year ended June 30, 2009
because it has filed for Chapter 11 Bankruptcyqmtdn and all U.S. stores have been liquidatedctoskd. In re-evaluating the use of our
self constructed peer group, we believe a natigpmaltognized stock index presents investors withoee consistent measure for a comparison
of cumulative total return, and accordingly, intéadise the S&P 500 retailing index as a comparisostockholder return for subsequent
fiscal years. Additionally, in April 2007, we chaedjfrom a calendar year end to a fiscal year endlimg 30. Tuesday Morning therefore had
a six-month transition period from December 31,&@@0June 30, 2007. The measurement periods shothe iperformance graph below
correspond to our calendar year ends prior to bange in fiscal year, our transition period thateshon June 30, 2007 and our subsequent
June 30 fiscal year ends. The chart assumes tBat\#as invested on December 31, 2003, in our constawk and each of the comparison
indices, and assumes that all dividends were retede

Comparison of Total Return of the Company, Peer Grap and Broad Market

COMPARISON OF 5-YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
AMONG TUESDAY MORNING CORP.,
S&P 500 INDEX AND S&P 500 RETAILING INDEX
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Item 6. Selected Financial Dat:

The following table sets forth the seleatedsolidated financial and operating data fordisears ended June 30, 2009, 2008, and 2007,
the six months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, aofttlas end of, each of the three years ended DieeeB1, 2006, 2005, and 2004. The
statement of operations data for the fiscal yeaded June 30, 2009 and 2008, the six-month periddaJune 30, 2007, the year ended
December 31, 2006, and the balance sheet dataJas®f30, 2009, and 2008, are derived from outedidonsolidated financial statements
that appear herein. The statement of operatiorssfdathe fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 is deérirem our unaudited consolidated
financial statements. The six-month period ended B0, 2006 and the balance sheet data as of Ju20@6 are derived from our unaudited
consolidated financial statements that are includdbe respective Form 10-Q. The statement ofatpmrs data for the year ended December
31, 2004 and the balance sheet data as of Jurg®@D,and December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004 areedefriom our audited consolidated
financial statements that are not included in Husm 10-K.

The selected consolidated financial andatpey data should be read in conjunction with "lsigement's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operation" and aonsolidated financial statements and relatédsnereto included elsewhere in this
Form 10-K.

Six Months Ended June
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 30, Year Ended December 31,
2009 2008 2007 2007 2006 2006 2005(5) 2004
(In thousands, except per share and number of stosg

Statement of Operations Data

Net sales $801,72; $885,28. $924,19¢ $408,52( $395,42¢ $911,10° $931,82° $897,84.
Cost of sale: 505,58¢ 562,57¢ 578,88. 257,85. 247,56: 568,59: 574,54t 556,62

Gross profit 296,137 322,707 345,31¢ 150,66¢ 147,86: 342,51 357,28. 341,21
Selling, general and administrative

expense: 293,70: 297,85. 296,63: 144,96: 132,39( 284,06( 260,73t 237,12

Operating incomi 2,43t 24,85 48,68¢ 5,70i 15,47+ 58,45! 96,54¢  104,09:
Net interest and other exper (2,509 (2,719 (1,527) (65€) (26€) (1,137 (52¢) (2,27%)
Income (loss) before income tax (69) 22,13: 47,16 5,051 15,20¢ 57,32 96,01¢ 101,81¢
Income tax expense (benel (25) 7,63¢ 17,09 1,97(C 5,76¢ 20,89: 35,06( 39,19¢
Net income (loss $ (44) $ 14,49¢ $ 30,070 $ 3,081 $ 943¢ $ 36,42¢ $ 60,95 $ 62,61

Earnings per shan
Basic $ 00C $ 03t $ 07: $ 007 $ 02 $ 08 $ 14t $ 1.5¢
Diluted 0.0C 0.3t 0.7z 0.07 0.2t 0.87 1.4¢€ 1.5C

Weighted average shares outstand

Basic 41,50¢ 41,43¢ 41,43: 41,43: 41,38( 41,39: 41,26¢ 41,04¢
Diluted 41,50¢ 41,49¢ 41,63] 41,63] 41,64 41,64 41,77( 41,76¢
Dividends per common sha $ $ — $ 08 $ 08 $ 08 $ 08 $ o06t % —

Operating Data:
Number of stores

Beginning of perioc 842 81C 762 79t 732 732 662 577

Opened during perio 35 48 63 27 35 71 81 89

Closed during perio (20) (16) (15) (12 5) 8 (12) 4

Open at end of peric 857 842 81C 81C 762 79t 732 662
Comparable store sales (decrease) incrt

Q) (12.5% (7.6)% (5.6% (2.5)% (7.99% (7.9% 4.0% 1.7%
Average sales per store(2), $ 93¢ $ 107¢ $ 1,17¢ $ 51z $ 53F $ 1,197 $ 1,33 $ 1,42¢
Inventory turnover(3 2.1 2.C 2.2 2.1 2.3 2.2 2.t 2.8
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As of June 30, As of December 31,
2009 2008 2007 2006 2006 2005 2004
(In thousands)

Balance Sheet Data:

Working capital $163,71! $168,13( $165,37: $153,42¢ $161,09¢ $152,64¢ $115,44(
Inventories 223,62¢ 240,99t 288,79. 241,66( 242,67: 230,63¢ 189,13:
Total asset 319,24: 341,77t 394,32. 352,307 393,13: 379,92° 336,12(
Total debt, including current porti — 8,50C 56,50 21,00( — — —
Total stockholders' equit 235,350 232,91: 215,44( 214,00* 243,87 235,36: 197,15(

1)

()

(3)

(4)

(5)

Stores are included in the same store sales cttula the beginning of the quarter following #reniversary date of the store
opening. A store that relocates within the sameomahic market or modifies its available retail @pés still considered the same st
for purposes of this computation. The number ofsdayr stores are open may fluctuate from periquetod.

Average sales per store is the sum of the aveige per store for each quarter.

Inventory turnover is the ratio of cost of saleaterage inventory. Average inventory is calculdigdaking the average of the
previous year-end and quarter-end inventory lethetsughout the year.

A significant portion of our revenues and net eagsiare realized during the period from Octobavtbh December while the increi
in merchandise purchases in preparation for thislénp selling season occurs in prior months.

Based on certain views expressed in a letter dagbduary 7, 2005 from the Office of the Chief Acotant of the Securities and
Exchange Commission to the American Institute atified Public Accountants, we reviewed our accaumpolicies and practices
associated with operating leases. Consistent withstry practices, we historically reported stréigie rental expense beginning on
the lease commencement date. This had the effectatdiding the rent holiday associated with thegening or build-out period of
our stores from the calculation of the period owvbich we expensed rent. Following our review, walified our accounting policies
such that we begin recording rent expense on tteevdla take possession of or have the right to hes@itemises.

As a result of this adjustment, we recorded a @ne;tnon-cash, $3.9 million ($2.4 million, net aEome tax) cumulative charge to
earnings during the first quarter of the 2005 cddaryear. The adjustment did not impact historicliture net cash flows or the
timing of the payments under related leases. Wiesxethat the new lease accounting policies witlhreove a material effect on future
diluted earnings per share. Prior years' finarat@lements were not restated as the impact oisthug was immaterial to previously
reported results for any individual prior periods.
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis &inancial Condition and Results of Operation

The following discussion and analysis should beli@aconjunction with "Selected Financial Data" aodr consolidated financial
statements and related notes thereto included &lsemin this Form 10-K.

Overview

. We sell upscale, name brand home furnishings, hearss, gifts and related items significantly beletail prices charged by
department and specialty stores in 857 stores gimaut 45 states. We have a unique event-basedgsstliategy that creates a
sense of urgency and excitement for our custormse.ba

. Our store base grew approximately 2% and 4% oefishal years ended June 30, 2009, and 2008, atdaglg, and 4% over
the six months ended June 30, 2007, and approXyr@¥eto 10% per year for each of the prior threkeodar years. During
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2009, and 2008)ameased our store base by a net of 15 and 3@sstaspectively. During t
six months ended June 30, 2007, we increased angr Isdse by a net of 15 stores compared to 30sstioiréng the same period
of 2006. During the full calendar year 2006, weanged our store base by a net of 63 stores.

. In December of 2008, we entered into a new crefdi#@ment. The agreement provides for, among ofiireys: a maturity date
of December 2013; a revolving credit commitmen$50.0 million which was increased in January 2@ $180.0 million;
new applicable commitment fees and interest rated;a requirement that the principal amount ansdtantling letters of credit
of the outstanding loans may not exceed $45 mifi@r80 consecutive days during the period fromédeler 28 to January
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, wezadloperating cash flow to pay down the balanceuofrevolving credit
facility. As a result, the balance on our revolvirgdit facility at June 30, 2009 was $0.0 millasicompared to $8.5 million at
June 30, 2008.

. The home furnishings and housewares related indastave been negatively impacted by mamronomic pressures, increa
supply and competition as well as a highly competiand promotional environment. Beginning with thearter ended
September 30, 2004, we posted consecutive negatimparable store sales through the quarter ended3y 2009. During
this time, however, we have continued to generasitipe operating income and cash flow on an anhaais.

. The retail home furnishings and housewares indesstrave been negatively impacted by increased ddiapevithin an
already highly competitive promotional environmemtrend we believe is likely to continue in thenterm and potentially
longer. As a closeout retailer of home furnishings,currently compete against a diverse grouptaflegs, including
department and discount stores, specialty and eveone retailers and mass merchants, which sellngrather products,
home furnishing products similar and often idertioghose we sell. We also compete in particularkats with a substantial
number of retailers that specialize in one or mgpes of home furnishing and houseware productsihasell. Many of these
competitors have substantially greater financiabugces than we do. Our competitors' greater fiahnesources allow them to
initiate and sustain aggressive price competitioitiate broader marketing campaigns that readrger customer base, fund
ongoing promotional events and communicate moguietly with existing and potential customers.

. In response to increased competition in the rétihe furnishings and housewares industries, we bage focused internally
on implementing various strategic initiatives theat believe will offset the impact of this trend liding, but not limited to,
striving to provide a merchandise assortment thalves and adapts to the changing needs and pnefssef our customer
base,
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continuing to review the individual contributionktbe existing store base and making decisions tabeufuture of individual
store locations including whether to close or ratechem, seeking to improve overall supply chéficiency including
reviewing operational practices such as freight;oendor payment terms, distribution processédsrareasing inventory
turns, and striving to optimize our marketing ptlgnmaximizing traffic, increasing comparable steates and expanding the
current customer base, while also increasing déistexcy. We are also striving to optimize our phasing of inventory to be
match customer demand.

. Our ability to continuously attract buying opporitigs for closeout merchandise and to anticipatesamer demand as close
merchandise becomes available represents an untgitaour business. By their nature, specificselout merchandise items
are generally only available from manufacturergemdors on a non-recurring basis. As a result, evaal have long-term
contracts with our vendors for supply, pricing ocess to products, but make individual purchasesies, which are often for
large quantities. Although we have many sourcas@ichandise and do not foresee any shortage afalivsnerchandise in t
near future, we cannot assure that manufacturersrators will continue to make desirable closeoetahandise available to
us in quantities or on terms acceptable to usardhr buyers will continue to identify and takevantage of appropriate buyi
opportunities. Since this uncertainty is a by-piidaf our business, we expect it to be an ongoorgern.

. The stability of our earnings is also heavily imfliced by macroeconomic factors. As the economydugs or worsens our
business is often similarly impacted. Macroeconofaétors, such as the current conditions in the datd housing markets,
have impacted and will continue to impact our bessby decreasing the disposable income of ounpateonsumers. The
decline in consumer confidence levels has alscehaelyative impact on consumers' ability and wiliegs to spend
discretionary income. At this time, we view theedition of the economy to be uncertain, which dagsatiow us a high degree
of visibility or certainty in predicting our earrgs.

. Beginning in January 2007, we reassessed our se&tkeprogram. The decision was made to open feagrstores and to
primarily execute more expansions and relocatioitis @ur existing store base. For both new storesratocations, we are
negotiating upgraded sites. With the expansion dppdaies, we will work with high producing storaad intend to increase t
selling square footage. Also as a result of thi subsequent evaluations, we plan to allow leaseggire and individual stor
to close for unprofitable stores where alternakdgations are not available at acceptable leass.rat

. On April 30, 2007, our Board of Directors approvedhange in our fiscal year end from December Jlte 30, effective
June 30, 2007. The six-month results being repdiyeas relate to the transitional six-month fisgatiod ended June 30, 2007.
For discussion purposes, we are comparing theexuiitancial statements for the year ended Jun2@I8 with the unaudited
financial statements of the year ended June 307 200 the financial statements for the six montiteed June 30, 2007 with
the unaudited financial statements for the six mereinded June 30, 2006. Due to the seasonalityrdfusiness including the
significant portion of sales and earnings that falleee in the quarter ended December 31, compariabtine six months ended
June 30, 2007 to the fiscal year ended June 3@ @0the calendar year ended December 31, 2006dwmilbe meaningful.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Management's Discussion and Analysis igthagpon our consolidated financial statements, vhve been prepared in accordance
accounting principles generally accepted in thetdthStates. The preparation of these financiadstahts requires us to make estimates and
judgments that affec
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the reported amounts of certain assets, liabilisates and expenses, and related disclosure tihgent assets and liabilities. On a recurring
basis, we evaluate our significant estimates whiehbased on historical experience and on varithes assumptions that we believe are
reasonable under the circumstances. Actual reswalysdiffer from these estimates under differentiaggtions or conditions.

We believe the following critical accourgipolicies affect our more significant judgments &stimates used in the preparation of our
consolidated financial statements.

Inventory —Our inventories are stated at the lower of cosharket using the retail inventory method for storeentory and the specil
identification method for warehouse inventory. Amtauare removed from inventory based on the rete@intory method which applies a
cost-to-retail ratio to our various retail dedunoScsuch as sales, markdowns and shrink, to arriwaracost of sales. Buying, distribution,
freight and certain other costs are capitalizepaatof inventory and are expensed as cost of saléise related inventory is sold. The retail
inventory method, which is used by a number ofaampetitors, involves management estimates withrebtp items such as markdowns and
inventory. Such estimates may significantly imphet ending inventory valuation at cost as wellh&samount of gross margin recognized.

We capitalize into inventory all merchamd@osts and certain costs incurred to purchaseibdite and deliver merchandise to our stores
in order to more accurately match the cost of nmeandise with the timing of its sale. These costsrarieided in cost of sales when the
merchandise is sold. Other cost of sales compomecitsle merchandise markdowns, shrink and damaggsh are expensed as they are
incurred.

We conduct full physical inventories atsitbres at June 30 and December 31 to measuretgeoh hand and make appropriate
adjustments to our financial statements. Duringogsrfor which physical observations do not ocewe,utilize an estimate for recording
shrinkage reserves based on our historical expagiom the results of our physical inventoriesisTéstimate may require a favorable or
unfavorable adjustment to actual results to thergxhat our subsequent actual physical inventgiid a different result. Thus, the
difference between actual and estimated amountscanase fluctuations in the quarters ending in Manoth September, but the difference is
not a factor in the quarters ending in DecemberJame. Since we conduct physical inventory coumitset a year, the subjective nature of our
shrink percentage is reduced and our exposurestdsk of a significant error is minimized. In atidn, we have losgrevention programs a
policies that we believe minimize shrinkage. Altghunventory shrinkage rates have not fluctuatgdificantly in recent years, if the actual
rates were to differ from our estimates, then iiewis to the inventory shrinkage expense could haired.

Inventory is the largest asset on our l@asheet and represented approximately 70%, 71846/ 2%, of total assets at June 30, 2009,
2008, and 2007, respectively. Inventory decrease¥ or $17.4 million from June 30, 2008 to JuneZM9, primarily due to a decrease in
purchases of 5.2% in 2009. Inventory decreasedd 6:6$47.8 million from June 30, 2007 to June 3M&, primarily due to a reduction in
purchasing levels during the third and fourth gergrof 2008. On a per store basis, inventory deeck8.8% from June 30, 2008 to June 30,
2009 and 19.7% from June 30, 2007 to June 30, 2008.

Markdowns—We have used markdowns to promote the effectidetiamely sale of merchandise that allows us to testly provide
fresher merchandise to our customers. We are &lsong markdowns coupled with promotional evetdadrive traffic and stimulate sales
during non-sales event periods. Markdowns may ipg@deary or permanent. Temporary markdowns are ftesignated period of time with
markdowns recorded based on quantities sold dtinegeriod. Permanent markdowns may vary througtheutjuarter or year in timing with
higher markdowns traditionally recorded in the dgei ended June 30 and December 31 due primardgasonal merchandise.
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Permanent markdowns are charged to cost of salasdiately based on the total quantities on-hartderstores. We review all inventory
during each quarter on a continual basis to ersllireecessary price actions are taken to adequeaddlye our inventory at the lower of cost or
market through the retail inventory method. Theg@®as which involve actual or planned permanentkaawns are considered by
management to be the appropriate prices to stimdkmand for the merchandise. In addition to reyutaviewing inventory levels to

identify slow-moving merchandise, management atswsiders current and anticipated demand, custoreéerences, age of merchandise and
seasonal trends in determining markdowns. Our neavkd, as a percentage of total sales, have geneesh consistent from year to year.
However, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 20@implemented a strategy to more closely monitdr@mtrol our markdowns of inventory
to avoid marking down items that continued to gelbugh at reasonable rates. We believe this glyatentributed to overall margin by
focusing our markdowns more on inventory that waly tslow moving and less on the basis of age weirtory alone. Changes in markdowns
from period-to-period are discussed as a part oRasults of Operations analysis below. Actual neglipermanent markdowns could differ
materially from management's initial estimates Hamefuture customer demand or economic conditihs.effect of a 1.0% markdown in
the value of our inventory at June 30, 2009 woasklift in a decline in gross profit and diluted &aga per share for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2009 of $2.2 million and $0.03, respebtive

Insurance and Self-Insurance ReservesWe use a combination of insurance and self-ina@gtans to provide for the potential
liabilities associated with workers' compensatipeneral liability, property insurance, director anfficers' liability insurance, vehicle liability
and employee health care benefits. Our stop logsslper claim are $500,000 for workers' compepsatb250,000 for general liability, and
$150,000 for medical. Liabilities associated wlib tisks that are retained by us are estimatguiiity by historical claims experience, seve
factors and the use of loss development factors.ifi$urance liabilities we record are primarilyluginced by changes in payroll expense,
sales, number of vehicles, and the frequency angkisg of claims; and include a reserve for claimsurred but not yet reported. Our self-
insurance reserves for workers' compensation, géliaility and medical, were $9.1 million, $1.8llon, and $1.1 million at June 30, 2009,
respectively. Expenses for the foregoing itemsrdythe fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 were $3l@mi$3.0 million and $7.9 million,
respectively. At June 30, 2008, our self-insuramrserves for workers' compensation, general ligtaind medical, were $9.4 million, $1.7
million, and $1.0 million, respectively. Expenses the foregoing items during the fiscal year endiede 30, 2008 were $3.1 million, $4.3
million and $7.1 million, respectively. At June W07, our self-insurance reserves for workers'pEmation, general liability and medical,
were $10.0 million, $1.0 million, and $0.7 milliorespectively. Expenses for the foregoing itemsnduthe six months ended June 30, 2007
were $1.9 million, $2.0 million and $2.9 million.uDestimated reserves may be materially differehfour future actual claim costs, and, in
the future, if we conclude an adjustment to oueress is required, the liability will then be adp accordingly in the period that
determination is made. There were no material changthe estimates or assumptions used to detemsmifrinsurance liabilities during the
periods presented. We recognize insurance expeases on the date of an occurrence of a loss imgule actual and estimated ultimate
costs of our claims. Claims are paid from our resgand our current period insurance expense usstadj for the difference in prior period
recorded reserves and actual payments as a chaegémate. Current period insurance expensesraikale the amortization of our
premiums paid to our insurance carriers.

Impairment of long-lived assets—Long-lived assets such as buildings, equipmentjtiure and fixtures, and leasehold improvements
are reviewed for impairment at least annually ahe@mever an event or change in circumstances irdi¢hat their carrying values may not
recoverable. If the carrying value exceeds the stithe expected undiscounted cash flows, the aasetsonsidered impaired. For store-level
long-lived assets, expected cash flows are estiarizeed on the historical cashflows generated égtibre and are adjusted based on
management's estimates of expected future

25




results. Impairment is measured as the amount ligtmthe carrying value of the asset exceeds theséiie of the asset. Fair value is
determined by discounting expected cash flows. Impant, if any, is recorded in the period in whttle impairment occurred. The Company
has not recorded any material impairment chargésaal 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. As ttogeution of future cash flows requires
the use of management's judgment and estimates| aesults may differ from the Company's estimatds possible that additional charges
for asset impairments may be recorded in the futtreanagement had lowered its assumptions of ewaije store sales results by 3% for
each of the next five years, additional impairmgrdrges would have also been immaterial.

Stock-based compensatior-The Compensation Committee of our Board of Dirextnd, through express consent of the
Compensation Committee, the CEO, are authorizegaiot stock options and restricted stock awards ftime to time to eligible employees
and directors. Those awards may be service or qegioce based. We typically grant options with eiserprices equal to the market price of
our common stock on the date of the option grahé Majority of the options granted prior to JuneZWD8 vested daily over periods of four
to five years and expire in ten years. Options @g@after June 30, 2008, typically vest over pesioflone to three years with equal portions
of the grant vesting on an annual basis and expinnen years. On January 1, 2006, we adoptegdrthgsions of SFAS No. 123(R), "Share
Based Payment," which requires that companies measul recognize compensation expense at an arequalk to the fair value of share-
based payments granted under compensation arranteiiée calculate the fair value of stock optiosmg the Black-Scholes option pricing
model. Determining the fair value of share-basedrd& at the grant date requires judgment in deirggogssumptions, which involve a
number of variables. These variables include, baihat limited to, the expected stock price volgtibver the term of the awards, the expe
dividend yield and expected stock option exercesealvior. In addition, we also use judgment in esting the number of share-based awards
that are expected to be forfeited.

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth, for the ipeis indicated, selected statement of operatiotes éapressed as a percentage of net sales, as
well as the number of stores open at the end df padod.

Six Months Calendar
Fiscal Year Ended Ended Year Ended
June 30, June 30, December 31
2009 2008 2007 2007 2006 2006
Net sales 100.(% 100.(% 100.(% 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%

Cost of sale: 63.1 63.5 626 631 62.€ 62.4
Gross profit 36.¢ 36 374 36.¢ 374 37.€
Selling, general and administrative expe  36.€ 33.€ 321 35t 33t 31.2
Operating incom: 0.2 2.8 5.3 1.4 3.9 6.4
Net interest and other exper 0.3 (03 (02 (02 (©.I (0.2
Income tax expense (benel 0.C 0.¢ 1.8 0.5 i3 2.3
Net income (loss 0.C 1.€ 3.3 0.8 2.4 4.C
Number of stores open at end of per 857 842 81C 81C 762 79t

Selling, general and administrative expsrase comprised of wages and benefits, rent angpaccy costs, depreciation, advertising,
store operating expenses and corporate office.dostgases in dollar amounts of these expenseattaiteutable to increases in the number of
stores and increases in variable expenses duewtstoee sales growth and deleveraging of fixedscdse to declines in sales. Variable
expenses include payroll and related benefits, ’didirey expense and other expenses such as cezdifees.
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Twelve Months Ended June 30, 2009 Compared to TwehMonths Ended June 30, 200

Net sales decreased $83.6 million or 9.4%301.7 million in fiscal 2009 from $885.3 milliom fiscal 2008, of which, sales from non-
comparable new stores (stores open less than emgigereased $24.8 million which was offset by2e6% decrease in comparable store ¢
from 2008, comprised of comparable store transastitecreasing 6.4% and the comparable store aviéckgedecreasing 6.1%. Our average
annual sales per store decreased by $140,000 @01®.$0.9 million in 2009. Comparable store saled sales per store decreased primarily
due to lower traffic levels and a lower averagkdic Management believes traffic levels and avetagets were lower due to the lower
discretionary income availability of our customegsulting from the impact of the recession andsthgée of the U.S. housing and credit
markets. Traffic levels did slightly improve by @6lin the fourth quarter of 2009 on a comparablesstasis.

Gross profit decreased $26.6 million o€8.@ $296.1 million in fiscal 2009 compared to $32&illion in fiscal 2008, of which, $30.8
million of the gross profit decrease was directlyilautable to a decrease in our net sales, offgéiprovements in our gross profit
percentage. Our gross profit percentage increas86.9% in 2009 from 36.5% in 2008. This 0.4% iasein our gross profit percentage was
primarily attributable to a 0.6% decrease in ourkdawns as a percentage of sales due to our syredaegore closely match markdowns to
items that are slow moving. Additionally, our cosfroduct and freight also decreased by 0.1% esdatarily due to decreases in fuel pri
compared to those for the fiscal year ended Jun2@IB. These decreases were partially offset@y®% increase in our distribution costs as
a percentage of sales caused mainly by the impaetrdixed distribution costs being allocated oadower sales volume.

Selling, general and administrative expsrderreased $4.2 million or 1.4% to $293.7 miliim2009 from $297.9 million in the prior
year. The decrease was primarily attributable $8.2 million decrease in advertising, primarilytéhevision and radio, and a $1.6 milli
decrease in wages as we reduced staff to propetighntustomer traffic. Bank charges and check esggealso decreased by $1.4 million
result of lower transaction volumes while geneigdility insurance costs decreased $1.3 milliomariily as a result of lower traffic. Repairs
and maintenance and other purchased service expdeseased by $1.3 million as a result of costasoment efforts. These decreases were
partially offset by an increase of $5.1 millionremt primarily as a result of our increase in thenber of stores. As a percentage of sales thes
expenses increased 3.0% to 36.6% in 2009 from 38162008. The increased percentage is primarilytdueduced expense leveraging gi
our negative comparable store sales for the ydarsd expenses decreased on an average annuarpdrasis by $4 thousand or 4.9% to $86
thousand in 2009.

Net interest and other expense decreas@d$illion to $2.5 million in 2009 compared to $2xillion in 2008. This decrease was
attributable to $1.2 million less net interest exgdue to lower borrowing levels throughout fi2@09 versus borrowing levels in fiscal
2008. Offsetting this decrease was a decreaséar otcome of $0.8 million from fiscal year 2009wes fiscal 2008.

Income tax expense decreased $7.7 milianlienefit of $25 thousand versus an expense.6frfiiflion in 2008 due to decreased
profitability. Our effective tax rate increased3®.7% in fiscal 2009 versus 34.5% in fiscal 200@arily due to an increase of state and local
income tax rates of jurisdictions in which we opera

Twelve Months Ended June 30, 2008 Compared to TwahMonths Ended June 30, 2007

Net sales decreased $38.9 million or 4.8%885.3 million in 2008 from $924.2 million in 2D0of which, sales from non-comparable
new stores (stores open less than one year) iredte89.0 million which was offset by a 7.6% decesiascomparable store sales from 2007,
comprised of comparable store transactions decrg#&s6% and the comparable store average ticketdsiog 1.0%. Our average annual
sales per store decreased by $98,000 or 8.3% tandillion in 2008. Comparable store
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sales and sales per store decreased primarilyodogver traffic levels. Management believes traficels were lower due to the lower
discretionary income availability of our customegsulting from the impact of higher gasoline andrgg costs and general economic
conditions.

Gross profit decreased $22.6 million o6 . $322.7 million in 2008 compared to $345.3 imillin 2007, of which, $14.2 million of
the gross profit decrease was directly attributable decrease in our net sales. Our gross p@fitgmtage decreased to 36.5% in 2008 from
37.4% in 2007. This 0.9% decrease in our grosstgrefcentage was primarily attributable to a 0.i@%ease in our markdowns as a
percentage of sales due to an increase in ouriagedtory and a 0.4% increase in our distributiod &eight expenses resulting from
increased energy costs as a percentage of sakese Tricreases were offset by a 0.2% decrease shdukage costs.

Selling, general and administrative expsnsereased $1.2 million or 0.4% to $297.9 millinr2008 from $296.6 million in the prior
year. The increase was attributable to a $7.5anillincrease in store occupancy costs, store peebonats, and store fixed asset deprecie
expense primarily due to the expansion of our dbase offset by a $3.8 million decrease in advedgisxpenses and a $2.4 million decrease
in legal and consulting fees. As a percentage lebshese expenses increased 1.5% to 33.6% infai®832.1% in 2007. The increased
percentage is primarily due to reduced expensedgugy given our negative comparable store salethéoyear.

Net interest and other expense increasériiillion to $2.7 million in 2008 compared to $Irbllion in 2007. This increase was
attributable to $1.2 million more interest expedse to higher borrowing levels in the first andaet quarters of fiscal 2008 compared to the
first and second quarters of fiscal 2007.

Income tax expense decreased $9.5 milid't6 million in 2008 from $17.1 million in 200Tiel to decreased profitability. Our effect
tax rate decreased to 34.5% in 2008 from 36.2900V2rimarily due to a reduction in federal taxelated to deductions of state and local
taxes of jurisdictions in which we operate.

Six Months Ended June 30, 2007 Compared to Six Maom$é Ended June 30, 2006

Net sales increased $13.1 million or 3.8%408.5 million for the six months ended JuneZB®7 from $395.4 million in the same
period in 2006, primarily as a result of an inceeas48 stores from June 30, 2006 to June 30, 2f8&t by a 2.5% decrease in comparable
store sales from the same period in 2006. Compassibte transactions decreased 3.9% and compatabdeaverage ticket increased 1.5%.
Our average sales per store in the six months ehateel 30, 2007 was $512 thousand and, a decre&g4 diousand or 3.9% from the same
period in 2006. The decrease in average saleg@erisas been impacted by those stores openingwmmarkets performing below historical
trends. Comparable store sales and sales perdsoreased primarily due to lower traffic levels.idgement believes that traffic levels
declined due to the increase in supply of homeighing products, the promotional environment of Bdnrnishing retailers in this sector, as
well as the economic pressures impacting the diso@y income of consumers.

Gross profit increased $2.8 million or 1.884150.7 million in the six months ended JuneZ@7 compared to $147.9 million in the
same period in 2006, primarily due to new storenginopartially offset by a decline in comparablersteales. Our gross profit percentage
decreased to 36.9% in 2007 from 37.4% in 2006. Ul5%6 decrease in our gross profit percentage wamgly attributable to a 0.6%
increase in purchasing, freight and distributiopenses due to an increase in delivery surchargehwisulted from higher energy costs
offset by a 0.1% decrease in temporary and perntanarkdowns attributable to a shift in seasonalkal@wns resulting from a reduction in
seasonal inventory on hand during the most recenbgh
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Selling, general and administrative expsrnsereased $12.6 million or 9.5% to $145.0 milliorihe six months ended June 30, 2007
from $132.4 million in the comparable period in gréor year. The increase was mostly attributablart $8.7 million increase in store
occupancy costs, store personnel costs and skae disset depreciation expense primarily due tetpansion of our store base. As a
percentage of sales these expenses increased@ X848 in 2007 from 33.5% in 2006. The increaserdgntage was primarily due to
reduced leverage on expenses as a result of oatimegomparable store sales for the year and% Ihdrease related to store occupancy
costs, store personnel costs and store fixed depe¢ciation expense. Selling, general and admautiise expenses per average store was $18:
thousand in 2007, compared to $178 thousand isdhee six-month period of 2006, an increase of 1.8%.

Net interest and other expense increase@ $®usand to $656 thousand in the six monthsceddee 30, 2007 compared to $266
thousand in the same period in 2006. This increaseattributable to $352 thousand higher net istezgpense due to higher average
borrowing levels in 2007 than in 2006.

Income tax expense decreased $3.8 miltimm 5.8 million in the six months ended June 3W&to $2.0 million in the six months
ended June 30, 2007 due to decreased profitalfllily effective tax rate increased to 39.0% fordixemonths ended June 30, 2007 from
37.9% for the six-month period ended June 30, 3B06arily due to the impact of higher state taxexge on our effective tax rate when
calculated based on six months of operating resatlter than a full year. This impact is driventbg absence of the high volume of sales
from the holiday selling season on the six-montbudation.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We have funded our operations with casivdlgenerated from operating activities and borrga&iander our revolving credit facility.

Our cash flows will continue to be utilized for thperation of our business and the use of any exzash will be determined by the Board of
Directors. On February 1, 2008, our Board of Dimegtvoted to terminate the declaration of our aistidend. Our borrowings have
historically peaked in the quarter ended Septer8bers we build inventory levels prior to the hojidzlling season. Given the seasonality of
our business, the amount of borrowings under owlveng credit facility may fluctuate materially gending on various factors, including the
time of year, our needs and the opportunity to &equerchandise inventory. We have no off-balaf@esarrangements or transactions with
unconsolidated, limited purpose or variable inteegsities, nor do we have material transactionsoonmitments involving related persons or
entities.

Net cash flows provided by operating atitygi for the fiscal years ended June 30, 20092808, were $32.2 million and $59.1 million,
respectively, while cash flows used for operatintjvities for the six months ended June 30, 2007ev#55.8 million. For the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2009, cash provided by operatimngtas was primarily due to a decrease in inveyifr$17.4 million and an adjustment of
net loss for depreciation of $16.8 million. The dese in inventory was due to decreased purchésmgeatory to better match customer
demand. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2088, mavided by operating activities was primarilyedo a decrease in inventory of $47.6
million offset by a decrease in accounts payab®1at.4 million along with net income of $14.5 nai, adjusted for depreciation expense of
$17.5 million. The decreases in inventory and aotopayable were due to decreased purchases ahxentory to better match customer
demand. For the six months ended June 30, 200 floas used by operating activities of $55.8 mitliwas primarily due to early purchases
of favorably priced seasonal and utilitarian menzhise resulting in an increase in inventory of $48illion. A significant portion of our
revenues and net earnings are realized duringettiedofrom October through December while an insesia merchandise purchases in
preparation for this holiday selling season ocauzrior months. Cash and cash equivalents asr& 30, 2009, 2008, and 2007, were $5.8
million, $8.6 million, and $10.3 million, respectily. There has been no material change in our paypwdicy to vendors.
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Net cash used in investing activities was tb capital expenditures of $12.5 million, $1tiflion, and $6.7 million, respectively, for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, and 2008, thesixth period ended June 30, 2007. During each gapital expenditures were primarily
for new store openings, various distribution ceetguipment and improvements and corporate officgpagent and improvements. In fiscal
2010, we expect to spend approximately $20.9 millar capital expenditures, primarily for new preotiofferings and distribution center
equipment and improvements. Capital expenditurddeifinanced with funds generated from operatiang borrowings under our revolving
credit facility.

Net cash used in financing activities o2 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 20@8 primarily due to a change in cash
overdraft of $9.7 million combined with net paymeon our revolving credit facility of $8.5 millioéNet cash used in financing activities of
$49.2 million for the fiscal year ended June 3®M&0vas due primarily to net payments on our rewngleredit facility of $48.0 million. Net
cash provided by financing activities of $23.1 moill for the six months ended June 30, 2007, waspduegrily to net borrowings on our
revolving credit facility of $56.5 million offsetybour dividend payment of $33.1 million.

On March 9, 2007, our Board of Directorsldeed a cash dividend of $0.80 per common shatevths paid on March 30, 2007 in the
amount of $33.1 million. During the first quartdrZ®06, our Board of Directors approved a cashddind of $0.80 per share of common si
totaling $33.1 million and was paid on March 300@00n February 1, 2008, our Board of Directoreddb terminate the declaration of an
annual cash dividend. The Board of Directors in@iddhat it will consider the full range of altetivas with regard to the use of any excess
cash flow in the future.

On December 15, 2008, we entered into aaredit agreement providing for an asset-based;year senior secured revolving credit
facility (the "Revolving Credit Facility") in theraount of up to $150.0 million which matures on Daber 15, 2013 and on January 28, 2009,
we entered into an amendment to increase the anfraumi$150.0 million to $180.0 million. The revohg credit facility may be increased by
up to $70.0 million, not to exceed an aggregatd mimmitment of $250.0 million. Our indebtednesder the credit facility is secured by a
lien on substantially all of our assets. The reir@\credit facility contains, among other thingsckean down" provision requirement that the
sum of the aggregate principal amount of the onthtey loans and undrawn letters of credit may xoeed $45.0 million for 30 consecutive
days during the period from December 28 througludgn31. The revolving credit facility contains t@én restrictive covenants, which, affe
among others, our ability to incur liens or incddaional indebtedness, sell assets or merge aatigiate with any other entity. Unless
borrowings and letters of credit exceed 82.5% efrttaximum amounts available under the revolvingditfacility or an event of default
exists, the Company does not have to comply withfemancial covenants. Should such an event o¢herCompany is required to comply
with a consolidated fixed charge coverage ratia:af

At June 30, 2009, we had no amounts oudgtgrunder the revolving credit facility, $12.4 hah of outstanding letters of credit and
availability of $97.8 million under the revolvingedit facility. Letters of credit under the revaigi credit facility are primarily for self
insurance purposes. We incur commitment fees @b @p75% on the unused portion of the revolvinglitriacility. Any borrowing under the
revolving credit facility incurs interest at LIBO&t the prime rate, depending on the type of bomgwplus an applicable margin. These rates
are increased or reduced as our average dailyasiléil changes. Our weighted average interestirafesive of commitment fees and
amortization of debt issuance costs for the figealr ended June 30, 2009 was 11.26%.

As of June 30, 2009, we were in complianith all required covenants.

We anticipate that our net cash flows frgperations and borrowings under our revolving drizdility will be sufficient to fund our
working capital needs, planned capital expendituaed interest payments for the next twelve months.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangement
We had no off-balance sheet arrangement$ &une 30, 2009.
Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our contmatbbligations at June 30, 2009 and the effeath sbligations are expected to have on our
liquidity and cash flow in future periods (in th@unss):

Payments Due by Period

Contractual Obligations Total 1 Year 2-3Years 4-5Years More than5 Years
Non-cancelable operating leas $197,19: $63,01: $92,41¢ $37,69( $ 4,07(C
Leased maintenance, insurance and taxes on opeledise 14,927 4,77( 6,99¢ 2,85¢ 30¢
Interest on Revolving Credit Facili 7,24t 1,61( 3,22( 2,41¢ —

We do not consider merchandise purchasersttd be contractual obligations due to designededellation dates on the face of the
purchase order. Contractually required paymentsi@intenance, insurance and taxes on our leaseénties are estimated above as a
percentage of rent based on historical trends.&'aesunts can vary based on multiple factors inetuhflation, macroeconomic conditior
various local tax rates and appraised values ofental properties. Interest on the revolving dréatility is calculated based on contractual
commitment fees and standby letter of credit faxssiming our current balances of zero on the faailitd letters of credit totaling $12.4
million. It is likely we will incur additional inteest expenses than those calculated above as wetdgborrow amounts, from time to time,
under our revolving credit facility. We have no taplease obligations at June 30, 2009.

Quarterly Results and Seasonality

The following tables set forth some of quarterly financial data for the ten quarters endl@te 30, 2009. The quarterly information is
unaudited but has been prepared on the same Isabis audited financial statements included elsesvimethis Form 1. We believe that ¢
necessary adjustments (consisting only of norn@lrring adjustments) have been included to presdnty the unaudited quarterly results
when read in conjunction with our consolidated ficial statements and related notes included els@whehis Form 10-K. The results of
operations for any quarter are not necessarilycatdie of the results for any future period. (Inikands, except for per share data and
comparable store sales.)

Quarters Ended

Sept. 30, Dec. 31, March 31, June 30,
2008 2008 2009 2009
Net sales $173,40. $272,65( $167,00( $188,67!
Gross profit 64,15¢ 100,89! 60,97¢ 70,10¢
Operating income (lost (6,759 20,58( (9,38¢) (2,007)
Net income (loss (4,299 12,711 (6,82¢) (1,629
Basic earnings (loss) per shi (0.120 0.31 (0.1¢€) (0.09
Diluted earnings (loss) per she (0.10 0.31 (0.16) (0.09)
Comparable store sales decre 17.9% (14.9% (9.5)% (6.€)%
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Quarters Ended

Sept. 30, Dec. 31, March 31, June 30,
2007 2007 2008 2008
Net sales $201,65¢ $308,68° $178,44t $196,49.
Gross profit 75,70¢  114,90: 63,99¢ 68,09:
Operating income (lost 3,16¢ 34,24( (7,35¢) (5,19%)
Net income (loss 1,15¢ 20,53¢ (4,699 (2,496
Basic earnings (loss) per shi 0.0z 0.5C (0.17) (0.06)
Diluted earnings (loss) per she 0.0z 0.5C (0.1 (0.06)
Comparable store sales decre (1.5% (7.6% 8.2% (12.)%

Our quarterly results of operations maytilate based upon such factors as the numberraingjtof store openings, the amount of net
sales contributed by new and existing stores, tixeofrmerchandise sold, pricing, store closingsedocations, competitive factors and gen
economic and weather-related conditions. The tinsihgales events could impact the weighting ofshktween quarters. We expect to
continue to experience seasonal fluctuations irboginess, with a significant percentage of oursaéts and operating income being
generated in the December quarter, which includesoliday selling season.

Inflation

Inflation had some effect on our result®pérations in fiscal year 2008, primarily in trpagation, utilities and waste management ¢
However, in our opinion, the overall effect of mtfbn has not had a material effect on our resiltsperations in either fiscal 2009 or 2008.
We cannot assure that inflation will not materiaf§ect our results of operations in the future.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2009, the Financial Accounting Start$ Board ("FASB") issued Statement Of Financied@unting Standards No. 165
"Subsequent Events" ("SFAS 165"). SFAS 165 estaddigeneral standards of accounting for and disdasf events that occur after the
balance sheet date but before financial statenagatssued. The Company adopted the provision§ABSL65 effective April 1, 2009 with
no impact to our financial statements.

In June 2008, the Financial Accounting 8tads Board ("FASB") issued a staff position ("FB5é1 Emerging Issues Task Force 03-6-1
"Determining Whether Instruments Granted in Shaasdsl Payment Transactions are Participating SissutiThe FSP addresses whether
instruments granted in share-based payment transare participating securities prior to vestamgl, therefore, need to be included in the
earnings allocation in computing earnings per sfBRS) under the two class method described ingpapas 60 and 61 of FASB Statement
No. 128, "Earnings per Share." The FSP is effedtvdinancial statements issued for fiscal yeargibning after December 15, 2008 ¢
interim periods within those years. Early adoptidithis FSP is not permitted. The Company doesrbéve the impact of the adoption of
this FSP will be material.

In September 2006, the Financial Accoun8tendards Board issued Statement of Financial étorg Standards ("SFAS") No. 157,
"Fair Value Measurements," ("SFAS 157"). SFAS 1Eirifies the definition of fair value, describes timeds used to appropriately measure
fair value, and expands fair value disclosure nesguents, but does not change existing guidanoe whéther or not an instrument is carried
at fair value. For financial assets and liabiliti8§AS 157 is effective for fiscal years beginnaitger November 15, 2007 and for nfinancial
assets and liabilities, SFAS 157 is effective fecdl years beginning after November 15, 2008. Company adopted the provisions of SFAS
157 on July 1, 2008, as required for financial essaad liabilities and will adopt the provisions of
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SFAS 157 on July 1, 2009 for non-financial assatslabilities. The adoption of SFAS 157 did novea material impact on our financial
statements.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We are exposed to various market riskdudiog changes in foreign currency exchange ratelsrterest rates. Market risk is the
potential loss arising from adverse changes in sigokices and rates, such as foreign currency exgghand interest rates. Based on our
market risk sensitive instruments outstanding aluog 30, 2009, as described below, we have detedntihat there was no material market
risk exposure to our consolidated financial positieesults of operations or cash flows as of swath.dVe do not enter into derivatives or
other financial instruments for trading or speauapurposes.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rates.  We enter into foreign currency forward contsaetth major financial institutions which
participate on our revolving credit facility, to mege and reduce the impact of changes in foreigiemcy exchange rates on contractual
merchandise purchases with certain internationatioes, primarily in Euros. During the fiscal yeaded June 30, 2009, the only transactions
we hedged were for inventory purchase orders plactdforeign vendors for which the purchase orlgd to be settled in the vendor's
foreign currency. The periods for the forward fgreexchange contracts correspond to the periotteediedged transactions. Gains and Ic
on forward foreign exchange contracts are refleatéde statement of operations and were immattgiab as a whole in the fiscal year en
June 30, 2009.

The estimated fair value of foreign curnenontracts represents the amount required to @nteoffsetting contracts with similar
remaining maturities based on quoted market prigedune 30, 2009, the difference between theviine of all outstanding contracts and
face amount of such contracts was immaterial. §ddluctuation in exchange rates for these curesncould have a material affect on their
fair value; however, because we only use thesedahfioreign currency contracts to hedge future ey purchases at a fixed price in the
vendor's foreign currency at the time the purcloader is made and such hedging activities have lmsraterial, any fluctuations in the
exchange rate should not materially affect us.

You can find more information about the@etting policies for our forward foreign currenayntracts and our financial instruments in
Note 1 of the notes to our consolidated finandiaiesnents included elsewhere in this Forr-K.

Interest Rates. We had no outstanding debt as of June 30, 20@%had outstanding debt in the amount of $8.5oniland $56.5
million at June 30, 2008, and 2007, respectivelg. We our revolving credit facility to fund our ogions as needed. We are exposed to
financial market risk due to fluctuating interestas on our revolving line of credit. However, 9.8% increase in rate had occurred during
fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, this increasedvaat have resulted in an increase in interestresgoas we had no amounts outstanding
under the revolving credit facility at that timeny\borrowing under our revolver will incur interegtLIBOR or the prime rate depending on
the term of the borrowing plus an applicable marBiaring the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, IB©R rates we paid varied from 2.36%
to 5.07% while the prime rates we paid varied betw#.0% to 6.0%. During the fiscal year ended Bih&008, the LIBOR rate varied from
3.39% to 3.61% while the prime rate was 5.0%. Weaiirtommitment fees of up to 0.75% on the unusetiquoof the revolving credit
facility. This rate is reduced or increased asleverage ratio changes. We do not hold any devigatielated to interest rate exposure for any
of our debt facilities. Our weighted average instrate inclusive of commitment fees and amortiratf debt issuance costs for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2009 was 11.26%. You can foré mformation about our debt in Note 3 of theasab our consolidated financ
statements included elsewhere in this Form 10-K.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary &ia

The following consolidated financial statsrts of Tuesday Morning and its subsidiaries angbRef Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm are included in this Form 10-K.

Page

Report of Independent Registered Public Accournfimm F-2
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2062608 F-3
Consolidated Statements of Income for the fiscatyended June 30, 2009, and 2008, the six montiesieJune 30, 2007 and the

year ended December 31, 2( F-4
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equitytferfiscal years ended June 30, 2009, and 208&ixhmonths ended June 30,

2007 and the year ended December 31, : F-5
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for thelfigears ended June 30, 2009, and 2008, the sixhm@mded June 30, 2007 and

the year ended December 31, 2! F-6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements fofigoal years ended June 30, 2009, and 2008, theasiths ended June 30, 2C

and the year ended December 31, 2 F-7

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accotents on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Control Procedures

Based on our management's evaluation (vétticipation of our principal executive officercaaur principal financial officer), our
principal executive officer and our principal fir@al officer have concluded that our disclosuretoma and procedures (as defined in Rule
13a-15(e) or Rule 15d-15(e) under the SecuritieshBxge Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange YAwe)e effective as of June 30, 2009
to ensure that information required to be discldsgds in this Report on Form 10-K was (1) recorgedcessed, summarized and reported
within the time periods specified in the Securite€hange Commission's rules and forms and (2)raataied and communicated to our
management, including our principal executive andgpal financial officers, to allow timely decis regarding required disclosure.

A control system, no matter how well coneei and operated, can provide only reasonableabsiilute, assurance that the objectives of
the control system are met. Because of inhereritaiions in all control systems, no evaluation ofitols can provide absolute assurance that
all control issues, if any, within a company haeeib detected. Accordingly, our disclosure contaold procedures are designed to provide
reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the ifeiecf our disclosure control system are met asdset forth above, our chief executive
officer and chief financial officer have concludédsed on their evaluation as of the end of thege&overed by this report, that our
disclosure controls and procedures were effectiyirdvide reasonable assurance that the objeativesr disclosure control system were r

Management's Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of Tuesday Morning is respoeditil establishing and maintaining adequate intexoiatrol over financial reporting as
defined in Rule 13a-15(f) or Rule 15(d)-15(f) untlee Exchange Act. Tuesday Morning's internal adrdver financial reporting is designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding théiléljeof financial reporting and the preparatiohfimancial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accountiimgimies.
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Because of its inherent limitations, indroontrol over financial reporting may not preventletect misstatements. Therefore, even |
systems determined to be effective can provide mdgonable assurance with respect to financisdratnt preparation and presentation.

Our management (with the participation of principal executive officer and our principaidincial officer) assessed the effectiveness of
Tuesday Morning's internal control over financiegborting as of June 30, 2009. In making this assess management used the criteria set
forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiohthe Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Calrtrintegrated Framework. Bas
on our assessment, we believe that, as of Juriz089, Tuesday Morning's internal control over ficiahreporting is effective based on those
criteria.

The Company's independent registered pabkounting firm has issued an attestation repothe effectiveness of the Company's
internal control over financial reporting as of 80, 2009. That report follows on the next page.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Tuesdaiorning Corporation

We have audited Tuesday Morning Corpor&iorternal control over financial reporting aslahe 30, 2009, based on criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framdwssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organinatiaf the Treadway Commission
(the COSO criteria). Tuesday Morning Corporationanagement is responsible for maintaining effedtiternal control over financial
reporting, and for its assessment of the effecagsrof internal control over financial reportinglirded in the accompanying Management's
Annual Report on Internal Control Over FinanciapBeing. Our responsibility is to express an opiim the Company's internal control ¢
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance withstandards of the Public Company Accounting Qgiet8oard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigianternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe@is: audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etésting and evaluating the design and operatifeg&feness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre®& considered necessary in the circumstancefeéliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over finanaigborting is a process designed to provide redderssurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal control over fioai reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainky reflect the transactions and dispositionshaf assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeztessary to permit preparation of financakstents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (8jige reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the compangsets that could have a material effect on thenfiizd statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intdroontrol over financial reporting may not preventetect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periagssabject to the risk that controls may becomdeqaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Tuesday Morning Corporatioaintained, in all material respects, effectivieinal control over financial reporting as of
June 30, 2009, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstandards of the Public Company Accounting Ogatdsoard (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Tuesday Morningd@2atipn as of June 30, 2009 and 2008, and theerktainsolidated statements of
operations, stockholders' equity, and cash flowdHe fiscal years ended June 30, 2009 and 208&ixhmonths ended June 30, 2007, ant
year ended December 31, 2006, of Tuesday Mornirrgdtation and our report dated August 28, 2009 esged an unqualified opini
thereon.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Fort Worth, Texas
August 28, 2009
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Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal abatver financial reporting that occurred during tast fiscal quarter that have materially
affected or are reasonably likely to materiallyeaffour internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information
None.

37




PART IlI
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpmate Governance

The information required by this Item 1Gnesorporated herein by reference to the disclofawad in our definitive proxy statement to
filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A of thixchange Act in connection with Tuesday Morni2§89 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders.

We have adopted a "Code of Ethics for Seffilcancial Officers” that establishes the ethg&tahdards to be followed by the persons
serving as principal executive officer, principaancial officer, principal accounting officer cortroller, or persons performing similar
functions. We have also adopted a "Code of Condbet'establishes the business conduct to be fetldvy all of our officers, employees ¢
members of our Board of Directors. Both are avédlam our website atww.tuesdaymorning.coonder "Investor Relations—Corporate
Governance."

There have been no changes to the procetiyrerhich stockholders may recommend candidatesuioBoard of Directors that have
occurred in the quarter ending June 30, 2009.

ltem 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item 1insorporated herein by reference to the disclofawad in our definitive proxy statement to
filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A of thxchange Act in connection with Tuesday Morni2§89 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficiBOwners and Management and Related Stockholder M&trs

The information required by this Item 12nesorporated herein by reference to the disclofawad in our definitive proxy statement to
filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A of thxchange Act in connection with Tuesday Morni2g89 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides informationcalb our common stock that may be issued upon teecise of options under equity
compensation plans approved by stockholders dsedidcal year ended June 30, 2009. We do not &iayequity compensation plans that
were not approved by our stockholders.

Number of Securities
Remaining Available for
Number of Securities

to Be Issued Future Issuance
Upon Exercise of Under Equity
Outstanding Options, Weighted-Average Compensation Plans
Exercise Price of (excluding securities
Warrants and Rights ~ Outstanding Options,  reflected in column (a))
Plan Category (thousands) Warrants and Rights (thousands)
. _ . @ _ ®) _ ©
Equity Compensation Plans Approved by Security did 2987 $ 11.37 1,872
Equity Compensation Plans Not Approved by Sectuitibjders — — —
Total 2987 $ 11.37 1,872

38




Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Trarections, Director Independence

The information required by this Item 13nesorporated herein by reference to the disclofawad in our definitive proxy statement to
filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A o thxchange Act in connection with Tuesday Morni2g89 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders.
Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this Item 14risorporated herein by reference to the disclofaad in our definitive proxy statement to
filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A of thxchange Act in connection with Tuesday Morni2g89 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders.
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Item 15.

PART IV

Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

(@)  The following documents are filed as part of thisri 10-K.

(1) Financial Statements:

The list of financial statements required by tiésni is set forth in Item 8.

(2)  Financial Statement Schedules:

All financial statement schedules called for unBegulation SX are not required under the related instructi@ns,not materi
or are not applicable and, therefore, have beetter are included in the consolidated finansiatements or notes thereto
included elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

(3)  Exhibits:
Exhibit
No. Description
3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of Tuesday Morningr@oration (the "Company") (incorporated by refeeto Exhibit 3.1 to the
Company's Registration Statement on Form S-4 ({fdle333-46017) as filed with the Securities andhzaxrge Commission (the
"Commission") on February 10, 19¢
3.1.2 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Ingoration of the Company dated March 25, 1999 (ipoated by reference to
Exhibit 3.3 to the Company's Registration Statenoenform S-1/A (File No. 333-74365) as filed witle tCommission on
March 29, 1999
3.1.%2 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Ingoration of the Company dated May 7, 1999 (inccae by reference to
Exhibit 3.1.3 to the Company's Form-Q as filed with the Commission on May 2, 20
3.2 Amended and Restated By-laws of the Company dags@émber 14, 2006 (incorporated by reference toli#ixBil to the
Company's Forr8-K as filed with the Commission on December 20, X(
10.1.1 Tuesday Morning Corporation 1997 Long-Term Equitgdntive Plan (incorporated by reference to ExHibi® to the Company's
Registration Statement on Forr-4 (File No. 33-46017) as filed with the Commission on February19®8)t
10.1.2 Amendment No. 1 to the Tuesday Morning Corporali®f7 Long-Term Equity Incentive Plan (incorporalgdreference to
Exhibit 10.10 to the Company's Registration Statenoe Form S-1/A (File No. 333-74365) as filed witle Commission on
March 29, 1999)
10.1.2 First Amendment to the Tuesday Morning Corporafi®87 Long-Term Equity Incentive Plan (incorporabgdeference to
Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Form-Q as filed with the Commission on August 1, 20C
10.z Stockholders Agreement, dated as of December 2%, 1% and among the Company, Madison Dearbornt&dpértners Il, L.P.
and the executives listed on Schedule | attachexth (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10d.the Company's Registration
Statement on Form-4 (File No. 33-46017) as filed with the Commission on February19®8)
10.2 1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporataéfeyence to Exhibit 10.12 to the Company's Regfisin Statement on
Form $-1 (File No. 33-74365) as filed with the Commission on March 1299%
40
Exhibit
No. Description
10.5.1 Tuesday Morning Corporation 2004 Long-Term Equilgentive Plan (incorporated by reference to AglieB to the Company's
Definitive 14A Proxy Statement as filed with ther@mission on April 19, 2004)
10.5.2 First Amendment to the Tuesday Morning Corporafi684 Long-Term Equity Incentive Plan (incorporatgdeference to

Exhibit 10.4 to the Company's Form-Q as filed with the Commission on August 1, 20C



10.5.. Second Amendment to the Tuesday Morning Corpmma&D04 Long-Term Equity Incentive Plan (incorpethby reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Forr-K as filed with the Commission on November 8, 2GC
10.7 Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement underhesday Morning Corporation 1997 Long-Term Equitydntive Plan and the
Tuesday Morning Corporation 2004 Long-Term Equitgdntive Plan (incorporated by reference to ExHiBitl to the Company's
Form ¢-K as filed with the Commission on May 3, 200!
10.1C Description of Directors Compensation (incorporatgdeference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Fa@¥Q as filed with the
Commission on May 4, 2007
10.11 Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for dicestunder the Tuesday Morning Corporation 2004 Ldagn Equity Incentivi
Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.th® Company's Form-K as filed with the Commission on November 6, 20€
10.1z Form of Confidentiality Agreement for directors¢orporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Canys Form 8-K as filed with
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10.1: Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for dioestunder the Tuesday Morning Corporation 1997 Ldagn Equity Incentivi
Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2h Company's Form-K as filed with the Commission on December 19, 20(
10.1¢ Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for empksyunder the Tuesday Morning Corporation 1997 Loergn Equity
Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to ExHibi3 to the Company's Form 8-K as filed with @@mmission on December 19,
2007)t
10.1t Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for empks/under the Tuesday Morning Corporation 2004 Lergn Equity
Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to ExHibi4 to the Company's Form 8-K as filed with @@mmission on December 19,
2007)t
10.1¢ Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, datgtgi@ber 29, 2008, between the Company and Kattson
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to tlwrpany's Form-K filed with the Commission on October 3, 200:
10.17 Employment Agreement dated October 2, 2008, betwlee@ompany and Michael J. Marchetti (incorpordtedeference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Forr-K as filed with the Commission on October 3, 20
10.1¢ Form of Performance Stock Award Agreement undefinesday Morning Corporation 2004 Long-Term Equikyentive Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to tlmmpany's Form-K filed with the Commission on October 10, 200
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10.1¢ Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement underfhesday Morning Corporation 2004 Long-Term Eglnigentive Plan
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on January 30, 2009



10.2¢

10.2¢

10.2%

10.2¢

10.2¢

21.1

23.1

First Amendment to the Employment Agreement, ddsetdiary 28, 2009, by and between Tuesday MornimgdZation and Micha
Marchetti (incorporated by reference to ExhibitliDto the Company's Form-Q filed with the Commission on January 30, 20C

Form of Nonqualified Stock Option with Service Awlakgreement under the Tuesday Morning Corporat@®a ongTerm Equity
Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exttibil to the Company's Forr-K filed with the Commission on March 3, 200¢

Form of Incentive Stock Option Award Agreement Eanployees under the Tuesday Morning Corporatior82athg-Term Equity
Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to ExHibi2 to the Company's Forr-K filed with the Commission on March 3, 200¢

Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Award Agreemenit Employees under the Tuesday Morning Corpora2@®8 Long-Term
Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by referenc&xbibit 10.3 to the Company's Form 8-K filed witte Commission on March 3,
2009)t

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement underithesday Morning Corporation 2008 Long-Term Equitgentive Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to tlmrpany's Form-K filed with the Commission on March 3, 200¢

Subsidiaries of the Company (incorporated by refeeeo Exhibit 21.1 to the Company's FormKL@s filed with the Commission «
March 9, 2005
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31.2 Certification by the Chief Financial Officer of tl@mpany Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 200z
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32.z Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of tt@mpany Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, adoptedipntso Section 906 of the
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SIGNATURES
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Tuesdaiorning Corporation

We have audited the accompanying cons@itiaalance sheets of Tuesday Morning Corporatiaf asne 30, 2009 and 2008, and the
related consolidated statements of operationskistdders' equity, and cash flows for the years dnlime 30, 2009, and 2008, the six months
ended June 30, 2007, and the year ended Decemh20@3. These financial statements are the redpititysof the Company's management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢éhiisancial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting Slgat Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindmecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on flasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptesiused and significant estimates made by marageas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thataodits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the financial statementened to above present fairly, in all materialpests, the consolidated financial position of
Tuesday Morning Corporation at June 30, 2009 a8 28nd the consolidated results of its operaténkits cash flows for the years ended
June 30, 2009, and 2008, the six months ended3yr2007, and the year ended December 31, 20@6niormity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstandards of the Public Company Accounting Oghtdoard (United States), the
effectiveness of Tuesday Morning Corporation'srimaecontrol over financial reporting as of June 3009, based on criteria established in
Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued byGloenmittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the TweadCommission and our report
dated August 28, 2009, expressed an unqualifiesiapithereon.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Fort Worth, Texas
August 28, 2009
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ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Deferred income taxe
Total current asse
Property and equipment, r
Deferred financing cos
Other asset
Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payabl

Accrued liabilities

Deferred income taxe

Income taxes payab

Total current liabilities

Long-term debi

Deferred ren

Deferred income taxe
Total Liabilities

Commitments and contingenci
Stockholders' equity

Preferred stock, par value $0.01 per share, azab10,000,000 shares, none issued or outsta
Common stock, par value $.01 per share, authofi@€dd00,000 shares; 42,836,707, and 41,816,82@ssmued

and outstanding as of June 30, 2009 and :
Additional paic¢-in capital
Retained earning
Accumulated other comprehensive |i

Total Stockholders' Equit

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equ

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.

Tuesday Morning Corporation
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(In thousands, except for share data)

F-3

June 30,
2009 2008

$ 578 $ 8,63(
223,62¢  240,99¢
10,191 11,29:
1,54t —
241,150 260,91¢
72,35¢ 77,31%
4,211 503
1,521 3,04(

$319,24: $341,77¢

47,10¢ 63,89¢
28,76¢ 28,59¢

267

1,56¢ 27
77,43¢ 92,78¢
— 8,50(

4,171 4,16:
2,27¢ 3,41¢
83,88¢( 108,86!

42¢ 41€
203,637 201,15:
31,33¢ 31,37¢
(42 (39
235,350 232,91:
$319,24: $341,77¢




Tuesday Morning Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Operations

(In thousands, except per share data)

Six Months
Fiscal Years Ended June 3! Ended D\;i:aermEt?gres?:l
June 30,
2009 2008 2007 2006
Net sales $801,72: $885,28. $408,52( 911,10°
Cost of sale: 505,58! 562,57¢ 257,85: 568,59
Gross profit 296,13 322,70  150,66¢ 342,51:
Selling, general and administrative exper 293,70: 297,85.  144,96. 284,06(
Operating incom: 2,43¢ 24,85 5,701 58,45
Other income (expense
Interest expens (2,749 (3,929 (1,15¢) (2,29¢)
Interest incomt 1 157 14¢€ 15¢
Other income, ne 242 1,052 35€ 1,00¢
(2,504 (2,719 (65€) (1,139
Income (loss) before income tax (69 22,13: 5,051 57,32
Income tax expense (bene! (25) 7,63¢ 1,97(C 20,89:
Net income (loss $ (44) $ 14,49¢ $ 3,081 $ 36,42
Earnings Per Share
Net income per common sha
Basic $ 00C $ 03 $ 007 $ 0.8¢
Diluted $ 00C $ 03k $ 007 $ 0.87
Weighted average number of common sh:
Basic 41,50¢ 41,43¢ 41,43: 41,39:
Diluted 41,50¢ 41,49: 41,63% 41,64"
Dividends per common sha — — $ 08C $ 0.8(C

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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Tuesday Morning Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity

(In thousands)

Balance at December 31, 20C

Comprehensive incom

Net income

Unrealized gain on foreign exchange contractsphitx

Comprehensive incorr

Shares issued in connection with employee stodbopian/stock
purchase pla

Dividends declare

Stocl-based compensation expel

Balance at December 31, 2006

Comprehensive incom

Net income

Unrealized loss on foreign exchange contractsphtetx

Comprehensive incorr

Shares issued in connection with employee stodboptian/stock
purchase pla

Adoption of FIN 48, 'Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxe

Dividends declare

Stocl-based compensation expel

Balance at June 30, 2007

Comprehensive incom

Net income

Unrealized loss on foreign exchange contractsphtetx
Comprehensive incorr

Shares issued in connection with employee stoaknitive plar
Stocl-based compensation expel

Balance at June 30, 2008

Comprehensive income (los:

Net income (loss

Unrealized loss on foreign exchange contractsphtetx
Comprehensive income (los

Shares issued in connection with employee stodknitive plar
Stocl-based compensation expel

Balance at June 30, 200

Accumulated

Other

C hensi Total

— Common Stock Additional omprenensit Stock%;ders
Paid-In Retained Income

Shares  Amount Capital Earnings (Loss) Equity
41,37( 414  191,22¢ 43,76 (44) 235,36:
— — — 36,42¢ — 36,42¢
— — — — 36 36
_ — — 36,42 36 36,46"
53 — 577 — — 577
- - — (33,109 - (33,109
— — 4,57¢ — — 4,57¢
41,42 414 196,38 47,09( (8 243,87
— — — 3,081 — 3,081
— — — — (30) (30
- - - 3,081 (30) 3,051
17 — 10 — — 10
— — — (145) — (145)
— — — (33,14 — (3314
— — 1,792 — — 1,792
41,44( 414  198,18: 16,88: (38) 215,44(
_ — — 14,49 — 14,49¢
— — — — 1) D
— — —  14,49¢ ) 14,49;
371 4 (3) — — 1
— _ 2,977 (@) — 2,97:
41,817 $ 41€ $201,15: $31,37¢ $ (399 $ 232,91
- = — (44) — (44)
— — — — 3 ©)
— — — (44) ©) (47)
1,02( 10 (10) — — _
— — 2,48¢ — — 2,48¢
42,837 $ 42& $203,63! $31,33¢ $ (42) $ 235,35:

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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Tuesday Morning Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to mesthcprovided by (used in) operati

activities:
Depreciatior
Amortization of financing fee
Stock based compensation expe
Loss on disposal of ass¢
Deferred income taxe
Other nor-cash item:
Change in operating assets and liabilit
Inventories
Prepaid and other current ass
Other asset
Accounts payabl
Accrued liabilities
Deferred ren
Income taxes payab
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditure
Net cash used in investing activiti
Cash flows from financing activities:
Payment of dividends to common stockholc
Borrowings under revolving credit facili
Repayments under revolving credit facil
Change in cash overdr:

Proceeds from exercise of common stock optionsstéouk purchase plan purch

Excess tax benefit related to exercise of stoclonp
Payment of financing fee

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of pe
Cash and cash equivalents, end of pe
Supplemental cash flow information:

Interest paic
Income taxes paid (refunds receiv:

(In thousands)

Six Months

Years Ended June 30, Ended Year Ended
June 30, December 31,

2009 2008 2007 2006
$ (44 $ 14,49¢ $ 3,081 $ 36,42¢
16,79¢ 17,48: 8,85¢ 16,73¢
70¢ 201 93 171
2,61¢ 3,17¢ 2,011 4,02¢
631 54C 41€ 352
(3,087 1,407 762 28¢
4 1) (232) 37
17,38 47,62: (46,28() (11,489
1,09t (5,339 (337) 1,641
1,51¢ 542 1,55¢ (19¢)
(7,095  (17,36)) (6,067 13,53¢
17¢C (2,62¢) (4,719 (6,43¢)
8 (371) (84) 187
1,537 (685)  (14,83) (977)
32,24( 59,07¢ (55,759 54,31:
(12,479 (11,569 (6,655 (15,707
(12,479  (11,56)) (6,655) (15,70))
— — (33,14 (33,107)
232,75t 220,00( 185,50( 286,50(
(241,250 (268,000 (129,000 (286,500)
(9,695) (1,187 — —
— — 10 514
— — — 63
(4,417 — (282) —
(22,617  (49,18) 23,08: (32,529
(2,847 (1,679 (39,330 6,08¢
8,63( 10,30: 49,63: 43,54
$ 578 $ 863 $ 1030: $ 49,63:
$ 1,78 $ 367¢ $ 952 $ 2,07¢
(96) 11,49: 16,217 22,03¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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TUESDAY MORNING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All dollar amounts in thousands, except for per sare amounts)
(1) NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

We operated 857 discount retail storesiistates as of June 30, 2009 (842, 810, and 78&ssb June 30, 2008 and 2007, and Dece
31, 2006 respectively). We sell close-out homeifilnings, housewares, gifts and related items, whielpurchase at below wholesale prices.
Our stores are generally open seven days a weefoans on periodic "sales events," that occur itheaonth except January and July. We
are generally closed for up to the first two weekdanuary and July as we conduct physical invésgat all of our stores.

€)) Basis of Presentation-The accompanying consolidated financial statemiexstade the accounts of Tuesday Morning
Corporation, a Delaware corporation, and its whollyned subsidiaries. All intercompany balancestamasactions have been
eliminated in consolidation. We operate our busiressa single operating segment.

(b) Fiscal Year Change—On April 30, 2007, the Board of Directors of therffpany approved a change in the Company's fiscal
year from December 31 to June 30, effective Jun@@07. This Form 10-K is an annual report, anduighes information for
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008jxtkrmonth transitional period ended June 30, 20@¥far the twelve month
period ended December 31, 2006. The unauditeddiabimformation for the six-month period ended &, 2006 is as
follows:

Six Months Endec

June 30, 2006

(unaudited)

Total revenue $ 395,42¢
Operating incom: 15,47
Income before income tax 15,20¢
Net income 9,43¢
Net income per common sha

Basic $ 0.2¢
Diluted $ 0.27

(c) Cash and Cash EquivalentsCash and cash equivalents are comprised of aaditreceivables and all highly liquid
instruments with original maturities of three mantr less. Cash equivalents are carried at costhvetpproximates fair value.
At June 30, 2009 and 2008, credit card receivabtes third party consumer credit card providersevg?.7 million and $5.6
million, respectively.

(d) Inventories—Inventories, consisting of finished goods, ar¢estat the lower of cost or market using the retaiéntory
method for store inventory and the specific idécaifion method for warehouse inventory. Amountsrareoved from
inventory based on the retail inventory method Wwtdpplies a cost-to-retail ratio to our variougiledeductions (sales,
markdowns, shrink, etc.) to arrive at cost of saBs/ing, distribution, freight costs and certather expenses are capitalize:
part of inventory and are expensed as cost of saléise related inventory is sold. These capitdlexpenses included in end
inventory totaled $26.0 million and $26.8 millionJune 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively. We expeb8ed million, $71.5
million, $32.4 million, and $69.3 million of suclapitalized inventory costs in cost of sales for
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TUESDAY MORNING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

(All dollar amounts in thousands, except for per sre amounts)

(1) NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(€)

(f)

(9)

the fiscal years ended June 30, 2009, and 2008jttmeonths ended June 30, 2007, and the year dbeleeimber 31, 2006,
respectively.

We conduct semi-annual physical inventories to meagquantities on-hand and make appropriate adgrgsrio our financial
statements. During periods for which physical obsgons do not occur, we utilize an estimate faording shrinkage reserv
based on past historical trends of physical invgntesults. These shrinkage reserves may requdaecsiable or unfavorable
adjustment to actual results to the extent ouresgosnt actual physical inventories yield a diffémesult. We use markdowns
to promote the effective and timely sale of merctise. Temporary markdowns are for a designateagef time with
markdowns recorded based on quantities sold dtinegeriod. Permanent markdowns vary in timingulgrout the year, but
are charged to cost of sales immediately basedtahdquantities on-hand in the stores. We revidwnaentory at the end of
each quarterly period to ensure all necessary pigtiens are taken to adequately value our invgrabthe lower of cost or
market. These actions which involve actual or pghpermanent markdowns are considered by manage¢oieathe
appropriate prices to stimulate demand for the hrerdise. Actual required permanent markdowns cdiffier materially from
management's initial estimates based on futur@metdemand or economic conditions.

Property and Equipment-Property and equipment are stated at cost. Buisdifugniture, fixtures, leasehold improvements
equipment are depreciated on a straight-line s the estimated useful lives of the assets |ksis:

Estimated Useful Lives

Buildings 30 year
Furniture and fixture 3to 7 year
Leasehold improvemer Shorter of lease life or life of improvem:
Equipment 5to 10 yeat

Upon sale or retirement of an asset, the relatetiastd accumulated depreciation are removed franaczounts and any gain
or loss is recognized in the statement of operatiBxpenditures for maintenance, minor renewalsrapdirs are expensed as
incurred, while major replacements and improvemargscapitalized.

Deferred Financing Costs-Deferred financing costs represent fees paid imeotion with obtaining bank and other loegm
financing. These fees are amortized over the tdrineorelated financing using the effective intéregthod.

Income Taxes-Income taxes are accounted for under the assdiadnility method. Deferred tax assets and lialgititare
recognized for the future tax consequences ataidatto differences between the financial staternamying amounts of
existing assets and liabilities and their respectax bases and operating loss and tax creditfoanrgrds. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are measured using statutory téagsraxpected to apply to taxable income in thes/gawhich those temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or
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TUESDAY MORNING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

(All dollar amounts in thousands, except for per sre amounts)

(1) NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

(i)

0)

(k)

()

settled. The effect on deferred tax assets anditieb of a change in tax rates is recognizechicoime in the period that
includes the date of enactment. We file our anfeddral income tax return on a consolidated b&sighermore, we recognize
uncertain tax positions when we have determinedritore likely than not that a tax position will sagstained upon
examination. However, new information may becomailaisle or applicable laws or regulations may cleathgereby resulting
in a favorable or unfavorable adjustment to amotsxtsrded.

Self Insurance ReservesWe use a combination of insurance and self-insgqohans to provide for the potential liabilities f
workers' compensation, general liability, propentgurance, director and officers' liability insucan vehicle liability and
employee health care benefits. Liabilities assediatith the risks that are retained by us are edédh in part, by historical
claims experience, severity factors and the usessfdevelopment factors. Our estimated reservgsbmanaterially different
from our future actual claim costs, and, in theifat if we conclude an adjustment to our resersesquired, the liability will
then be adjusted accordingly in the period thagmbeihation is made.

Revenue Recognitiea-Sales are recorded at the point of sale and camegyof merchandise to customers. Sales are net of
estimated returns and exclude sales tax.

Advertising—Caosts for television, radio, newspaper, directlraad other media are expensed as the advertisadstake
place. Advertising expenses for the fiscal yeadednlune 30, 2009, and 2008 were $30,698, and 333@spectively, were
$15,881 for the six months ended June 30, 2007farttie year ended December 31, 2006 were $36\¥/@4do not receive
money from vendors to support our advertising exjiares.

Use of Estimates-The preparation of the consolidated financialestagnts in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to makmates and assumptions that affect the reporteriats of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets lgatullities at the date of the consolidated finahstatements, and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the neggréiriod. Actual results could differ from thostimates.

Financial Instruments—The fair value of financial instruments is detemed by reference to various market data and other
valuation techniques as appropriate. The only fifr@nnstruments we carry are our revolving créaldlity and foreign
currency exchange contracts for merchandise pueshdsnominated in foreign currency. We believedaint, as recorded,
approximates fair value as the interest rates ari@ble based on current market rates.

We enter into foreign currency forward exchangetiams with major financial institutions which paipate on our revolving
credit facility to manage and reduce the impadtuaftuations in foreign currency exchange ratesemain contractual
merchandise purchases with international venddrsden the order and payment dates, which geneapflyoximate 2 to 6
months. We do not utilize derivative financial mshents for trading or speculative purposes.
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TUESDAY MORNING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

(All dollar amounts in thousands, except for per sre amounts)

(1) NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m)

(n)

We account for our foreign currency forward contisaas cash flow hedges in accordance with FinaAgebunting Standards
Board (FASB) Statement 138¢counting for Derivative Instruments and Hedgirdivities. Changes in the fair value of the
contracts that are considered to be effectiveererded in other comprehensive income (loss) th#ihedged item is recorded
in earnings. Effective cash flow hedges are reifladsout of other comprehensive income (loss) imtd cost of sales when tl
hedged inventory is sold. Ineffective cash flowdpesiare recorded in other income or loss and wareaterial for the perioc
presented. The effect of foreign exchange conti@ctsur financial position or results of operatiemgnmaterial.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Long-Lived &sggeBe Disposed GfLong-lived assets, principally property and
equipment and leasehold improvements, are revidardthpairment when circumstances indicate they@agrvalue of an ass
may not be recoverable. For assets that are teldeand used, an impairment is recognized wheesltimated undiscounted
cash flows associated with the asset or groups#tass less than their carrying value. If impaintnexists, an adjustment is
made to write the asset down to its fair value, ahaks is recorded as the difference betweenahgiog value and fair value.
Fair values are determined based on quoted maakets, discounted cash flows or internal appraisalspplicable. Assets to
be disposed of are reported at the lower of theyivey amount or fair value less costs to sell. Impant of long-lived assets
has not had a material impact on our financial tisi results of operations or liquidity for therjpels presented.

Share-Based CompensatiedWe recognized stock-based compensation costs tineleequirements of Statement 123(R) as
follows:

Fiscal years Ended ~ Sx-Months
Year Ended
June 30, Ended Deeca(lermbnerem
June 30,
2009 2008 2007 2006
Total cost of stoc-based compensation during the per $2,63C $3,000 $ 1,84¢ $ 4,57¢
Amounts capitalized in ending inventc (1,082 (1,039 (455 (1,372
Amount recognized and charged to cost of goods 1,067 1,207 621 82¢€

Amounts charged against income for the period lecfay $ 2,61f $3,17¢ $ 2,014 $ 4,02¢

Consistent with prior years, the fair value of eattitk option granted during the fiscal year endigae 30, 2009 was estimated
at the date of grant using a BlaSkholes option pricing model. The expected termrodption is based on our historical rev
of employee exercise behavior based on the empldgse (executive or non-executive) and based oeansideration of the
remaining contractual term if limited exercise wityi existed for a certain employee class. Addialby we estimate whether
the performance conditions of the options are futebto be met for those options awarded with penforce conditions. If in
the
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TUESDAY MORNING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

(All dollar amounts in thousands, except for per sre amounts)

(1) NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(0)

(p)

estimate of management, those conditions will moirket, we do not record expenses related to therfermance based
options. The risk-free interest rate is the cortstaaturity risk free interest rate for U.S. Tregsimstruments with terms
consistent with the expected lives of the awarde @xpected volatility is based on both the hisirvolatility of our stock
based on our historical stock prices and implieldtidy of our traded stock options.

These factors were as follows:

Six Months Year Ended

Fiscal Years Ended June 3( Ended June 3C  December 31

2009 2008 2007 2006
Weighted average ri-free interest ra 1.6-3.4% 2.35.1% 3.65.1% 4.2-4.4%
Expected life of options (year 4.4-6.C 4.4-6.C 4.4-6.C 4.4-6.C
Expected stock volatilit 49.5-64.8% 41.€-47.%% 42.5-43.5% 35.(%
Expected dividend yiel 0.C% 0.C% 5.C% 2.5%

Net Income (loss) Per Common SharBasic net income (loss) per common share for gwafiyears ended June 30, 2009,
2008, the six months ended June 30, 2007 and éoyehr ended December 31, 2006, was calculatedigjrd) net income
(loss) by the weighted average number of commoreshautstanding for each period. Diluted net incimgs) per common
share for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2009, 201 the six months ended June 30, 2007 antiéoydar ended
December 31, 2006, was calculated by dividing medine (loss) by the weighted average number of camshares including
the impact of dilutive common stock options outsfag. See Notes 6 and 10.

Recent Accounting Pronouncementtn May 2009, the Financial Accounting StandardsuBio"FASB") issued Statement Of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 165 "Subseqleents” ("SFAS 165"). SFAS 165 establishes gerstaaidards of
accounting for and disclosure of events that oaftar the balance sheet date but before finantaédments are issued. The
Company adopted the provisions of SFAS 165 effectipril 1, 2009 with no impact to our financial tsents.

In June 2008, the Financial Accounting Standardsr@¢'FASB") issued a staff position ("FSP") on Egieg Issues Task
Force 03-6-1 "Determining Whether Instruments Gednb Share-Based Payment Transactions are PatiigpSecurities."
The FSP addresses whether instruments grantediia-lased payment transactions are participaticuyisies prior to vesting
and, therefore, need to be included in the earrafigsation in computing earnings per share (ERf8leuthe two class method
described in paragraphs 60 and 61 of FASB StateMen128, "Earnings per Share." The FSP is effediv financial
statements issued for fiscal years beginning &tsrember 15, 2008 and interim periods within thgsars. Early adoption of
this FSP is not permitted. The Company does na\eethe impact of the adoption of this FSP willrbaterial.

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Stashsl&oard issued Statement of Financial Accounttag@ards ("SFAS")
No. 157, "Fair Value Measurements," ("SFAS 157").
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TUESDAY MORNING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(All dollar amounts in thousands, except for per sre amounts)
(1) NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

SFAS 157 clarifies the definition of fair value,sgeibes methods used to appropriately measuredhie, and expands fair
value disclosure requirements, but does not charigéing guidance as to whether or not an instrunsecarried at fair value.
For financial assets and liabilities, SFAS 157fieaive for fiscal years beginning after Novemf&t 2007 and for non-
financial assets and liabilities, SFAS 157 is dffecfor fiscal years beginning after November 2808. The Company adopt
the provisions of SFAS 157 on July 1, 2008, asireduor financial assets and liabilities and waitlopt the provisions of
SFAS 157 on July 1, 2009 for non-financial assetslebilities. The adoption of SFAS 157 did novea material impact on
our financial statements.

(@ Other Comprehensive Income (LossComprehensive income (loss) represents our changguity (net assets), during a
period, from transactions and other events andigistances from non-owner sources. It includeshahges in equity during a
period except those resulting from investmentsistridutions by or to owners. The components of paghensive income
(loss) are reported in the Consolidated Staten@frsockholders' Equity. Comprehensive income {lassudes the change in
fair value of our foreign currency forward contsact

(g)  Off-balance Sheet or Variable Interest Arrangemeri&/e do not have off-balance sheet arrangementssactions with
unconsolidated, limited purpose or variable inteegdities, nor do we have material transactionsoonmitments involving
related persons or entities.

) Subsequent EverntsWe have evaluated subsequent events through A@gu&009 which is the date the financial statesent
were issued. No material events occurred that redulisclosure.

(2) PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment, net of accumuldegateciation, consisted of the following at:

June 30,
2009 2008

Land $ 850¢ $ 8,50«
Buildings 41,354 41,04
Furniture and fixture 83,00¢ 73,49:
Equipment 60,40¢ 60,75
Leasehold improvemen 12,86 11,75¢
206,13( 195,55:

Less accumulated depreciati (133,774 (118,23¢)
Net property and equipme $ 72,35 $ 77,31t
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TUESDAY MORNING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(All dollar amounts in thousands, except for per sre amounts)
(3) DEBT

On December 15, 2008, we entered into aaredit agreement providing for an asset-based;year senior secured revolving credit
facility (the "Revolving Credit Facility") in theraount of up to $150.0 million which matures on Daber 15, 2013 and on January 28, 2009,
we entered into an amendment to increase the arfraumt$150.0 million to $180.0 million. The revahg credit facility may be increased by
up to $70.0 million, not to exceed an aggregatd mimmitment of $250.0 million. Our indebtednesder the credit facility is secured by a
lien on substantially all of our assets. The reir@\credit facility contains, among other thingsckean down" provision requirement that the
sum of the aggregate principal amount of the ontstey loans and undrawn letters of credit may xoeed $45.0 million for 30 consecutive
days during the period from December 28 througludgn31. The revolving credit facility contains tzén restrictive covenants, which, affe
among others, our ability to incur liens or incddaional indebtedness, sell assets or merge aatigiate with any other entity. Unless
borrowings and letters of credit exceed 82.5% efrttaximum amounts available under the revolvingditfacility or an event of default
exists, the Company does not have to comply withfamancial covenants. Should such an event o¢herCompany is required to comply
with a consolidated fixed charge coverage ratit:af

At June 30, 2009, we had no amounts oudstgrunder the revolving credit facility, $12.4 hah of outstanding letters of credit and
availability of $97.8 million under the revolvingedit facility. Letters of credit under the revaigi credit facility are primarily for self
insurance purposes. We incur commitment fees a6 @p75% on the unused portion of the revolvinglitriacility. Any borrowing under the
revolving credit facility incurs interest at LIBO&t the prime rate, depending on the type of bomgwplus an applicable margin. These rates
are increased or reduced as our average dailyasiléil changes. Our weighted average interestirafiesive of commitment fees and
amortization of debt issuance costs for the figealr ended June 30, 2009 was 11.26%.

As of June 30, 2009, we were in complianith all required covenants.
(4) ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accrued liabilities consist of the follovgn

June 30,
2009 2008
Sales ta) $ 2,266 $ 2,06(
Self-insurance reserve 12,22( 12,58t
Wages & benefit 6,78¢ 5,57¢
Property taxe 1,472 1,37:
Other expense 6,021 6,99¢
Total accrued liabilitie: $28,76¢ $28,59:
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TUESDAY MORNING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(All dollar amounts in thousands, except for per sre amounts)
(5) INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense (benefit) consists of:

Current Deferred Total

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2(C

Federal $2,73¢ $2,715 $ 24

State and loce 184 (239 (49

Total $2,92: $2,94¢ $ (25
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2(C

Federal $ 559 $1,262 $ 6,86(

State and locz 602 171 774

Total $6201 $1,43: $ 7,63¢
Six months ended June 30, 2(

Federal $ 83¢ $ 728 $ 1,56¢

State and locz 36¢ 37 40¢

Total $1206 $ 76z $ 1,97C
Year ended December 31, 2C

Federal $19,40¢ $ 417 $19,82¢

State and loce 1,19¢ (128) 1,067

Total $20,60: $ 28¢ $20,89:

A reconciliation of the expected federaldme tax expense (benefit) at the statutory inctameate to the actual tax expense (benefit)
follows (based upon a tax rate of 35%):

Year Ended

Six Months Endec December 31

Fiscal Year Ended

June 30, June 30,
2009 2008 2007 2006
Expected federal income tax expe! $ (25 $7,74¢ $ 1,76¢ $ 20,06¢
State income taxes, net of related federal taxfi 13¢ 611 182 39¢
Other, ne (a3¢) (729 20 42€
Total tax expense (benef $ (25 $7,63¢ % 1,97C $ 20,89
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(All dollar amounts in thousands, except for per sre amounts)
(5) INCOME TAXES (Continued)

The tax effects of temporary differencest thive rise to significant portions of the defertax assets and liabilities were as follows:

June 30, December 31
2009 2008 2007 2006
Deferred tax asset
Current:
Other payroll and benefi $ 797 $ 751 $ 73¢ % 82¢
Inventory reserve 1,12¢ 441 20t 152
Selfinsurance reserve 4,53¢ 4,60t 4,27¢ 4,391
Stoclk-compensatiol 3,40¢ 2,53¢ 1,63¢ —
Other current liabilitie: 827 853 90t 2,011
Noncurrent;
Deferred ren 1,58¢ 1,59¢ 1,664 1,71¢
Total gross deferred tax ass $12,28: $10,77¢ $ 9,42t $ 9,097
Deferred tax liabilities
Current:
Inventory cost: $ 6841 $ 7,094 $442¢ $ 2,19
Prepaid supplie 2,307 2,35¢ 2,12¢ 2,02¢
Non-current:
Property and equipme 3,86¢ 5,007 5,12z 6,36:
Total gross deferred tax liabiliti¢ 13,01¢ 14,46( 11,67« 10,58:
Net deferred tax liabilit $ 734 $368] $224¢ $ 1,48¢

We expect the deferred tax assets at JOn20®9 to be fully recovered and the deferreditbilities at June 30, 2009 to be fully
satisfied through the reversal of taxable tempodiffgrences in future years as a result of nodmainess activities. Accordingly, no
valuation allowances for deferred tax items wenmesgdered necessary as of June 30, 2009.

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—The Company or one of its subsidiaries files inedax returns in the U.S. federal
jurisdiction, and various state jurisdictions. Withw exceptions, the Company is no longer subjett.6. federal, state and local income
examinations by tax authorities for years befor@dld he Internal Revenue Service (IRS) has condageexamination of the Company for
years ending on or before June 30, 2(

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretao. 48, "Accounting for Uncertainty in Income TaXesn interpretation of SFAS No. 109,
" Accounting for Income Tax8g"FIN 48"), to create a single model to addressoainting for uncertainty in tax positions. FIN d@&rifies the
accounting for income taxes by prescribing a mininmecognition threshold that a tax position is iegfito meet before being recognized in
the financial statements. FIN 48 also provides gioid@ on derecognition, measurement, classificatiderest and penalties, accounting in
interim periods, disclosure and transition.

We adopted the provisions of FIN 48, onudam 1, 2007. As a result of the implementatiofridf 48, the Company recognized a $145
increase in the liability for unrecognized tax bisewhich
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(5) INCOME TAXES (Continued)

was accounted for as a decrease to the Janua®@1,ialance of retained earnings. A reconciliatibthe beginning and ending amount of
unrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

Balance at January 1, 20 $1,14¢
Additions for tax positions of prior yea 27
Settlement: (99
Balance at June 30, 20 $1,07¢
Additions based on tax positions related to curyeatr 57
Additions for tax positions of prior yea (17)
Reductions for tax positions of prior yei (53
Balance at June 30, 20 $1,091
Additions for tax positions of prior yea 12
Reductions for tax positions of prior yei (68)
Balance at June 30, 20 $1,03¢

The total amount of unrecognized tax bagéfincluding interest and penalty accruals) adusfe 30, 2009 is $1,497. The liability for
unrecognized tax benefits is included in the baasteeet under Income Taxes Payable. Included ibatemce at June 30, 2008 is $1,091 of
tax positions that, if recognized, would affect #ffective tax rate. Also, included in the balaatdune 30, 2009 are $462 of tax positions for
which the ultimate deductibility is highly certadut for which there is uncertainty about the timafghe deductibility. Because of the impact
of the deferred tax accounting, other than intemest penalties, the disallowance of the shorteuckduility period would not affect the annual
effective tax rate but would accelerate the payméotsh to the taxing authority to an earlier pari

The Company classifies and recognizeseésteand penalties accrued related to unrecogrézeblenefits in income tax expense. During
the years ended June 30, 2009, and 2008, andxtnecsith period ended June 30, 2007, and the yealesdeDecember 31, 2006, we
recognized, net of tax effect, $33, $60, $45, ahtlidin interest, respectively. We paid interest,aie¢ax, $13, during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2009, $86 during the six months ended 3002007, and $112 during the year ended DeceB81he006. No interest was paid in
tax year ended June 30, 2008.

We do not anticipate that the total amaininrecognized tax benefits will significantly iease or decrease the effective tax rate within
12 months of June 30, 2009.

(6) STOCK-BASED INCENTIVE PLANS

We have established the Tuesday Morningp@wation 1997 Long-Term Equity Incentive Plan, aeeaded (the "1997 Plan"), the
Tuesday Morning Corporation 2004 Long-Term Equitgdntive Plan, as amended (the "2004 Plan"), and tiesday Morning Corporation
2008 LongTerm Equity Incentive Plan (the "2008 Plan") whadtow for the granting of stock options to directoofficers and key employe
of, and certain other key individuals who perforenvéces for us, and our subsidiaries. The 1997 Riahorized grants of options to purchase
up to 4,800,000 shares of authorized, but unissoatmon stock. Equity awards may no longer be gdaniteler the 1997 Plan but options
granted under the plan are still exercisable. T@@2lan and the 2008 Plan authorize grants obgtio purchase up to 2,000,000, and
2,500,000 shares, respectively, of authorizeduhigsued common stock.
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(6) STOCK-BASED INCENTIVE PLANS (Continued)

Stock options are awarded with a strike price fairamarket value equal to the average of the laigth low trading prices of the Company's
common stock on the date of grant in the 1997 BRiahthe 2004 Plan. Stock options are awarded wsthike price at a fair market value
equal to the closing price of the Company's comstonk on the date of the grant in the 2008 Plan.

Options granted under the 1997 Plan an@®3d Plan typically vest over periods of threéite years and expire in ten years while
options granted under the 2008 Plan typically west periods of one to three years and expireniryéars. Options granted under the 2004
Plan and the 2008 Plan may have certain performaamgeérements in addition to service terms. If peeformance conditions are not satisfi
the options are forfeited. No options with perforro@ conditions were outstanding as of June 30,.2D@8 exercise prices of the options
range between $0.63 and $35.23, which represertseialue on the grant date. At June 30, 200%hates available under the 1997 Plan
had been granted and the 1997 Plan terminatedgnirsuits terms as of December 29, 2007. There w&31,334 and 540,541 shares
available for grant under the 2004 Plan and the8Zl@n at June 30, 2009, respectively.

Following is a summary of transactions tintato the 1997 Plan, 2004 Plan and 2008 Plarnlsrmupfor the fiscal year ended June 30,
2009:

Weighted- Weighted-
Average Aggregate

Number of Average Remaining
Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
Shares Price Term (Years) Value
Options Outstanding at June 30, 2( 2,000 $ 17.6¢€
Granted during yee 1,751 2.14
Forfeited or expired during ye (764) 6.73
Options Outstanding at June 30, 2( 2,987 11.37 6.0z 2,492
Exercisable at June 30, 20 1,787 $ 16.6¢ 392 $ 287

The weighted average grant date fair vafughare options granted during the fiscal yeadedrdune 30, 2009 and 2008, and the six

months ended June 30, 2007 and the calendar ydad &ecember 31, 2006, was $1.01, $1.69, $4.10$47d, respectively. The intrinsic
value of vested shares at June 30, 2009 is $287.

There were no options exercised duringitdwal year ended June 30, 2009. The aggregatasitivalue of share options exercised was
$9 and $139 during the fiscal year ended June @8 2nd the six months ended June 30, 2007, résplgcThe aggregate intrinsic value of
share options exercised during the year ended Deeed1, 2006 were $332. At June 30, 2009 we hatD$2f total unrecognized stock-
based compensation expense related to stock ophiahs expected to be recognized over a weigitedage period of 2.5 years.
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(6) STOCK-BASED INCENTIVE PLANS (Continued)

The following table summarizes informatesout stock options outstanding at June 30, 2009:

Options Outstanding

Weighted Average Options Exercisable
Weighted Average Weighted Average
Remaining
Number Contractual Life Exercise Price Number Exercise Price

Range of Exercise Prices Outstanding (Years) Per Share Exercisable Per Share
$0.63- $1.07 61C 93¢ § 1.0¢ 12t $ 1.07
$1.07- $1.24 49t 95t §% 1.2£ — —
$1.24- $7.43 80 881 § 5.1¢ 21 % 6.0C
$7.43- $8.31 91 29z % 8.12 77 $ 8.21
$10.00- $10.00 467 1.07 $ 10.0¢ 467 $ 10.0C
$12.38- $20.02 387 597 $ 16.3( 267 $ 16.7:
$20.04- $35.23 85¢€ 437 $ 24.0( 83C $ 23.8¢
2,981 6.0z $ 11.3% 1,787 $ 16.6¢

Restricted Stock Awards—Under the terms of the 1997 Plan, the 2004 Plaa tlae 2008 Plan, we may also grant restricteckdtnc
compensate certain directors, officers, key emmeyand certain other key individuals who performvises for us and our subsidiaries.
Restricted stock awards are not transferable, &éart bghts of ownership including voting and divideights. Shares are valued at the market
price at the date of award. The weighted averagstgtate fair value of restricted stock awards @g@uduring the fiscal years ended June 30,
2009 and 2008, and the six months ended June 80, 2@re $2.45, $5.00, and $14.83, respectivelyRMstricted shares were granted in the
calendar year ended December 31, 2006. Shares ensyblect to certain performance requirement$idfpterformance requirements are not
met, the restricted shares are forfeited. At Decamti, 2007, all shares under the 1997 Plan had dremted and the 1997 Plan expired as of
December 29, 2007. As of June 30, 2009, there Wl ,190 shares of restricted stock outstandinly aviveighted average fair value of
$1.79 per share under the 2004 Plan and the 2@08 Ebmpensation expense related to restricte@shgrecognized ratably over the
requisite service period. For restricted shareh pérformance provisions, we estimate whether érfopmance conditions of the restricted
shares are probable to be met for those shareslegvaiith performance conditions. If in the estimaftenanagement, those performance
conditions will not be met, we do not record expsneelated to those performance based restricereshAll restricted shares with
performance requirements were forfeited as of A&009. Expense recorded for all restricted stweltirds totaled $1,136 and $433 for the
fiscal years ended June 30, 2009, and 2008, regplgctThe expense totaled $49 for the six montideel June 30, 2007. At June 30, 2009,
we had $1,400 of total unrecognized stock-basedeosation
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(6) STOCK-BASED INCENTIVE PLANS (Continued)

expense related to restricted stock awards theatpected to be recognized over a weighted averagedoof 2.2 years. There was no expense
for the years ended December 31, 2006.

Weighted-

Number of Average
Fair Value at
Shares Date of Grant
Outstanding at June 30, 20 37€ 9 5.0C
Granted during yee 1,83( 2.4k
Vested during yee (24%) 4.4¢
Forfeited during yea (810 3.9¢
Outstanding at June 30, 20 1,151 $ 1.7¢

(7) OPERATING LEASES

We lease substantially all store locationder non-cancelable operating leases. Our lezsesagly are for a five year period with two
five year renewal options and, in very limited aimtstances, our leases involve a tenant allowandedsehold improvements. We record |
expense ratably over the life of the lease begmmiith the date we take possession of or haveigin to use the premises, and if our leases
provide for a tenant allowance, we record the lartieimbursement as a liability and ratably anzerthe liability as a reduction to rent
expense over the lease term beginning with thewlateke possession of or control the physicalsst®the premises. Leases for new stores
also typically allow us the ability to terminatée@se after 24 to 36 months if the store does clutae sales expectations or another location
appears more desirable. Future minimum rental pagsnender leases are as follows:

Fiscal Years Ending June 30,

2010 $ 63,017
2011 51,95
2012 40,46¢
2013 26,37
2014 11,31¢
Thereafte 4,07(
Total minimum rental paymen $197,19:

Rent expense for the fiscal years ended 3002009, and 2008 were $80,144 and $74,937ectgeply, and $35,184 for the six months
ended June 30, 2007. Rent expense for 2006, wal@&IRent expense includes rent for store locatéomd warehouses. Rent based on sales
is not material to our financial statements.

(8) 401(K) PROFIT SHARING PLAN AND STOCK PURCHASE PROGRAM

We have a 401(k) profit sharing plan fa trenefit of our full-time, eligible employees afs&x months of service. Under the plan,
eligible employees may request us to deduct anttibate from 1% to 20% of their salary to the pl&ubject to Internal Revenue Service
Regulations, we match each
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(8) 401(K) PROFIT SHARING PLAN AND STOCK PURCHASE PROGRAM (Continued)

participant's contribution up to 4% of participardbmpensation. We expensed contributions of $8@25830 for the fiscal years ended June
30, 2009, and 2008 and $466 during the six monide@ June 30, 2007. We expensed contributions ¢ #@ring the year ended December
31, 2006.

Prior to December 31, 2007, we offeredipiation in a stock purchase program for full tisTeployees after completion of 90 days of
continuous employment. This stock purchase plantemsinated effective December 31, 2007. We exgknse contributions as incurred.
The contributions were immaterial for all reporteghrs.

(9) LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

During 2001 and 2002, we were named agendant in three complaints filed in the Superiou@ of California in and for the County
of Los Angeles. The plaintiffs sought to certifgtatewide class made up of some of our currenf@naer employees, which they claim are
owed compensation for overtime wages, penaltiedraadest. The plaintiffs also sought attorneyessfand costs. In October 2003, we ent
into a settlement agreement with a sub-class aktipdaintiffs consisting of managers-in-trainingl ananagement trainees which was paid in
November 2005 with no material impact to our finahstatements. A store manager class was certifledever, in August 2008, our moti
for de-certification of the class of store manageas granted, thereby dismissing their class acti@m. The plaintiffs have appealed this
ruling and oral argument has been scheduled. litiaddsome plaintiffs may choose to pursue thkimas individually. We do not expect a
of these complaints to have a material impact arfioancial statements.

A similar lawsuit, which also alleges claitoncerning meal and rest periods, was filed en@e County, California in 2004, by
managers, managers-in-training and assistant mes)agel an amended complaint was filed in July 200December 2008, the four
plaintiffs abandoned their class action claim aadehelected to pursue their individual claims all asclaims under California's Private
Attorney General Act with respect to such allegadior his matter is presently set for trial in Segter 2009. A companion lawsuit alleging
the same claims was filed on December 26, 2008balbof approximately thirty-four additional inddwal plaintiffs. This lawsuit includes a
claim under California's Private Attorney Generat. AThe companion lawsuit is still in the initidhges of litigation. We do not expect any of
these complaints to have a material impact on ioantial statements.

In December 2008, a class action lawsug fikad by hourly, non-exempt employees in the Sigpeourt of California in and for the
County of Los Angeles, alleging claims covering h@aa rest period violations. This case has besyest pending the outcome of another
case. We do not expect this complaint to have &mahimpact on our financial statements.

We intend to vigorously defend all pendawions. We do not believe these or any other lpgaieedings pending or threatened against
us would have a material adverse effect on ounfifed condition or results of operations.
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(10) EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE

The following table sets forth the compiatiatof basic and diluted earnings per common share:

si
Fiscal Year Ended Morl1>t(hs Year Ended
June 30, Ended December
June 30, 31,
2009 2008 2007 2006
Basic Earnings Per Shal
Net income (loss $ (44 $14,49¢ $ 3,081 $ 36,42
Weighted average number of common shares outsig 41,50f 41,43¢ 41,43: 41,39:
Basic earnings (loss) per common st $ (00) $ 035 $ 007 $ 0.8¢
Diluted Earnings Per Shar
Net income (loss $ (44 $14,49¢ $ 3,081 $ 36,42
Dilutive effect of employee stock optio — 55 204 25E
Weighted average number of common shares outsi@ 41,50f 41,43¢ 41,43: 41,39:
Weighted average number of common shares andwdilaffect of outstanding employee
stock options 41,50f 41,49¢ 41,63} 41,64°
Diluted earnings per common shi $ (000 $ 03t $ 007 $ 0.87

Options representing the rights to purclasemon stock of 1,787,000 shares and restrictaxk stwards of 1,151,000 were excluded in
the earnings per share calculation for June 309 28€cause the assumed exercise of such optiorid Wwawe been anti-dilutive. Options
representing the rights to purchase common stodk5&7,000 shares at June 30, 2008, 888,000 at3lyr&®07, and 776,000 at December
31, 2006, had exercise prices greater than thegeaquoted market price for our common stock. Tkbaees were not included in the dilu
earnings (loss) per share calculation becausestherged exercise of such options would have beemiartive.

(11) QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED)
A summary of the unaudited quarterly residtas follows for the years ended June 30, 2662808:

Quarters Ended(1)

Sept. 30, Dec. 31, March 31, June 30,
2008 2008 2009 2009
Net sales $173,40. $272,65( $167,00( $188,67:
Gross profit 64,15¢ 100,89! 60,97¢ 70,10¢
Operating income (los! (6,759 20,58( (9,389 (2,009%)
Net income (loss (4,299 12,71 (6,82%) (1,630
Basic earnings (loss) per shi $ (010 $ 031 $ (0.16) $ (0.09
Diluted earnings (loss) per she $ (0.1) $ 031 $ (0.1¢9 $ (0.09
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(11) QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) (C ontinued)

Quarters Ended(1)

Sept. 30, Dec. 31, March 31, June 30,
2007 2007 2008 2008
Net sales $201,65¢ $308,68° $178,44¢ $196,49:
Gross profit 75,70¢ 114,90 63,99¢ 68,09
Operating income (los! 3,16¢ 34,24( (7,359 (5,19%)
Net income (loss 1,15¢ 20,53¢ (4,697 (2,49¢)
Basic earnings (loss) per shi $ 00 $ 05C $ (0.11) $ (0.0
Diluted earnings (loss) per she $ 002 $ 05C $ (0.17) $ (0.06

(1) A significant portion of our revenues and net eagriare realized during the period from Octobesugh December.
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Exhibit
No. Description
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10.12 Form of Confidentiality Agreement for directoisdorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenpany's Form 8-K as filed with
the Commission on December 19, 200
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Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.the® Company's Form-K as filed with the Commission on December 19, 360!
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Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by refeesincthe Registration Statements (Forms S-8 Nd3-153035, 333-79441, 333-90315, 333-
117880 and 333-145811 and Form S-3 Nos. 333-1082d@333-147103) of Tuesday Morning Corporation iarttie related Prospectuses of
our reports dated August 28, 2009, with respetiiecconsolidated financial statements of Tuesdaynivig Corporation, and the effectiven
of internal control over financial reporting of Tagay Morning Corporation, included in this Annua&rt (Form 10-K) for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2009.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP
Fort Worth, Texas
August 28, 2009




QuickLinks
Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM



QuickLinks-- Click here to rapidly navigate through this domnt

Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION
I, Kathleen Mason, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-Roeésday Morning Corporation;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraynuntrue statement of a material fact or om#itéde a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statement$oéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officer(s) anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)1%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresiused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgbsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipar, or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmare with generally accepted accounting principles

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantsl@lisire controls and procedures and presentedsimaport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regisanternal control over financial reporting tleacurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regis's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaftf, the registrant's internal control over finahcéporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) andalve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimnernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataumanmittee of the registrant's board of direci@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknes#gethe design or operation of internal contratiofimancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize apdrt financial information;
and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significémin the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 28, 2009 By: /s/ KATHLEEN MASON

Kathleen Mason
Chief Executive Office
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Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION
I, Stephanie Bowman, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-Roeésday Morning Corporation;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraynuntrue statement of a material fact or om#itéde a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statement$oéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officer(s) anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)1%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresiused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgbsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipar, or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmare with generally accepted accounting principles

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantsl@lisire controls and procedures and presentedsimaport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regisanternal control over financial reporting tleacurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regis's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaftf, the registrant's internal control over finahcéporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) andalve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimnernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataumanmittee of the registrant's board of direci@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknes#gethe design or operation of internal contratiofimancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize apdrt financial information;
and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significémin the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 28, 2009 By: /s/ STEPHANIE BOWMAN

Stephanie Bowman
Chief Financial Officel
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Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER OF
TUESDAY MORNING CORPORATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. 81350

I, Kathleen Mason, the Chief Executive €dfi of Tuesday Morning Corporation, hereby cettift:

1. The annual report on Form 10-K of Tuesday Mornimgp@ration for the fiscal year ended June 30, Z009 complies with
the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of theusities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the above-mentiongubrefairly presents, in all material respects, fihancial condition and
results of operations of Tuesday Morning Corporatio

Date: August 28, 2009 By: /s/ KATHLEEN MASON

Kathleen Mason
Chief Executive Office
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Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER OF
TUESDAY MORNING CORPORATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. 81350

I, Stephanie Bowman, the Chief Financidic@f of Tuesday Morning Corporation, hereby cgrtiat:

1. The annual report on Form 10-K of Tuesday Mornimgp@ration for the fiscal year ended June 30, Z009 complies with
the requirements of Sections 13(a) or 15(d) ofSbeurities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the above-mentiongubrefairly presents, in all material respects, fihancial condition and
results of operations of Tuesday Morning Corporatio

Date: August 28, 2009 By: /s/ STEPHANIE BOWMAN

Stephanie Bowman
Chief Financial Officel
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